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U.S. CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

Section 2 Finance



Accreditation Overview 

Welcome 

Welcome to the U.S. Chamber of Commerce Accreditation application program. We are excited that you are 

interested in standing out from the crowd and moving ahead. We want to help your through the Accreditation 

process by explaining our procedures, walking you through the steps to complete the materials, and clarifying 

what you can expect from us.      

The Accreditation Application is divided into nine sections with a complete set of instructions at the beginning 

of each one. If you have already completed a section and you are familiar with the instructions, click on the 

Governance Overview icon in the Bookmark Section to the left of your screen. Otherwise, the background and 

instructions should be reviewed in detail starting with the Accreditation Overview, below. 

Accreditation History 

In 1964, the U.S. Chamber of Commerce began offering its Accreditation Program to state and local chambers 

of commerce nationwide. The program was designed to provide a continuous self-analysis of an organization’s 

growth and development, with an opportunity for the organization to reassess its objectives and resources, 

program of work, procedures, and achievements. Since the Accreditation program’s launch, more than 750 

chambers have met the required organizational standards and have earned the title “Accredited.” 

Accreditation means that a local or state chamber of commerce has been recognized by the U.S. Chamber of 

Commerce for having sound programs and organizational procedures and for continually creating and 

maintaining positive change in the community.  

The U.S. Chamber Accreditation program establishes criteria for judging the quality of performance for state 

and local chambers of commerce, determines the extent to which organizations meet these criteria, and issues 

a public announcement that organizations are found to be of superior quality.  

The U.S. Chamber understands that state and local chambers are diverse and have unique programs of work, 

operations, merit, dues structure, and program policies. As a result, the Accreditation program has separated 

the state chamber Accreditation process from the local chamber Accreditation process. Distinct applications 

have been created to recognize these differences. 

Accreditation does not mean that an organization is perfect in every respect. Competent examiners 

acknowledge the quality of an organization and make recommendations where there are areas of deficiency 

and recognize chambers for areas of special distinction. 

Effective chambers of commerce operate above and beyond minimum standards. As each chamber prepares 

its Accreditation application, it seeks ways of improving its performance in the community. These criteria or 

standards become a tool for management control and self-discipline.   



Mission  

The mission of the Accreditation program is to establish a standard of organizational competency and an 

objective set of criteria for assessment. The achievement of standards by state and local chambers as 

determined by an examining committee will be recognized with Accreditation by the U.S. Chamber of 

Commerce. 

Procedures to Apply  

Make Sure Your Chamber is Entered into the Accreditation Database 

We want to make sure you are properly entered in our database. If you have not yet entered your contact 

information, click here http://www.uschamber.com/chambers/accreditation/intent.htm and follow the steps. 

Upon receipt, U.S. Chamber staff will enter the information into a database, allowing the applicant chamber to 

receive updates about the Accreditation process and invitations to conference calls discussing the application 

process. Do not send the program fee at this time. 

If clicking the link doesn’t work, make sure your computer is set up to access the Internet and try again. If you still 

experience difficulty, call Mathew Wasserburger at (202) 463-5821. 



Access the Application Documents 

There are nine sections of the Accreditation application: 

1. Governance 
2. Finance 
3. Human Resources and Staff 
4. Government Affairs 
5. Program Development 
6. Technology 
7. Communication 
8. Facilities 
9. Benchmarking 
 

Copies of all nine sections of the Accreditation application can be found on our Web site at 

http://www.uschamber.com/chambers/accreditation/app.htm   

These files can be completed by one person at the chamber or distributed to other chamber staff or volunteers 

to assist in the ultimate completion of the application.      

To assist in distributing the files, chamber staff or volunteers may go directly to the web site to download the 

sections of interest to them. 

No matter how many staff members or volunteers are working on the application, the chamber’s designated 

staff contact person should be the only one to communicate with the U.S. Chamber staff.  

Review the Application 

Review the application in its entirety — all nine sections — to determine whether the chamber is prepared to 

begin the Accreditation process. Use the glossary at the end of the each file to familiarize yourself with the 

language of the application. Glossary items can also be accessed by clicking on highlighted text. In the 

glossary a link is provided to return to the highlighted text. 

Complete the Application Documents 

Each applicant chamber is required to complete all nine sections of the Accreditation application.   

Each of the application’s nine sections is a self-contained document including: 

• Application instructions and overview  
• Section’s standards as defined by the U.S. Chamber  
• A list of minimum qualifications to achieve Accreditation for that section 
• A checklist of attachments 
• A digital application from  
 
The digital application form is divided into two categories; the minimum requirements which must be met for 
the chamber to be Accredited, and the additional criteria which will be evaluated to determine the star ranking 
of an Accredited chamber. 
 



Complete the Conclusion and Signature Page 

The Conclusion and Signature Page can be found on our Web site 

http://www.uschamber.com/chambers/accreditation/app.htm.  The U.S. Chamber requires that these pages 

be completed digitally, then printed and signed by the Chief Paid Executive and Chief Elected Officer. 

Prepare the Application Materials for Delivery  

Copy the nine pdf files and the conclusion page and signature page to a CD or USB drive.  Print and sign the 

completed Conclusion and Signature Pages, and enclose the payment form with a signed check or credit card 

information for $699 for U.S. Chamber members; $1,199 for non members.  

Mail the Application Materials to the U.S. Chamber  

The application materials should be put into an envelope with the completed Conclusion and Signature Pages 

and the payment and mailed to: 

U.S. Chamber of Commerce 

c/o Political Affairs and Federation Relations, Accreditation 

1615 H Street, NW 
Washington, DC 20062-2000 



U.S. Chamber of Commerce Review Process 

Review 

Once the completed application and program fee have been received, U.S. Chamber staff will review the 

chamber’s submission for minimum requirements. Due to the volume of applications received, we ask that you 

please do not contact the U.S. Chamber to inquire about the status of the chamber’s application. In the event 

that minimum requirements have not been met or there are missing materials, U.S. Chamber staff will contact 

you. 

An experienced Accreditation consultant will review the application and make recommendations. The 

consultant may contact the applicant to ask questions that might arise during the review. Based on the 

findings, a confidential report with recommendations will be prepared and sent to the Accrediting board, the 

governing body of the Accreditation program made up of business and chamber executives. The Accrediting 

board will review the recommendations and approve or disapprove the chamber’s Accreditation status.  

Recommendations will be presented to the Accrediting board at the February, June, and November board 

meetings. The day following the Accrediting board meeting, the applicant will be notified about the chamber’s 

Accreditation status. 

Awards 

All Accredited chambers must meet the minimum requirements for each section of the application. If the 

applicant completed the additional criteria sections of the application, the Accreditation consultant will review 

the additional material and designate the chamber as Accredited, Accredited with 3-Stars, Accredited with 4-

Stars, or Accredited with 5-Stars based on the number of additional criteria points scored in each sections of 

the application. A chamber earning at least 70% of the total number of points will be awarded Accredited with 

3-Stars; 80%, Accredited with 4-Stars; 90% or more, Accredited with 5-Stars. 

Post Accreditation Materials  

Upon receiving Accreditation, the chamber will receive a marketing kit with the following: 

• Letter of congratulations from Tom Donohue, U.S. Chamber President and CEO 

• Press release  

• Certificate of achievement  
• Recommendations for improvement 

• Sample newsletter articles and Web page blurbs 
• Camera-ready logos 

• U.S. Chamber of Commerce resource guide 

Each chamber receiving Accreditation will be acknowledged on the U.S. Chamber’s Web site. 

Maintaining Accreditation 

To maintain Accreditation, a chamber must submit an Accreditation application every five years. Chambers will 

receive an email from U.S. Chamber staff during the fourth year of Accreditation. It will remind them of the 

need to renew and provide links to the materials required for the renewal. 



Confidentiality 

The U.S. Chamber agrees to maintain the confidentiality of information received throughout this application 

except in cases where (1) the information is or becomes publicly known from sources other than the 

application itself (2) the information is received by the U.S. Chamber without restriction from a third party (3) 

the information is independently developed by the U.S. Chamber, or (4) the information is disclosed by the 

U.S. Chamber pursuant to judicial action. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Tech Support  

Navigation 

The Accreditation application uses bookmark navigation to assist the applicant in navigating the application. 

Please note that the pages of this file are divided in two. The left-hand side presents “bookmarks” that can be 

used to take you directly to specific pages in the document. Clicking on the triangle beside the bookmarks will 

“open them up” and provide you with a more detailed set of bookmarks for the section. 

If you have had no experience with this type of navigation, give it a try and become comfortable with it before 

going on. 

Completing Each Section 

 “Yes/No” Radio Buttons 

Radio buttons —  — are used for “yes/no” questions. If you inadvertently click a “yes” button, you can 

change your answer by clicking on the “no” button, and vice-versa. Radio buttons are also used to “check off” 

items on a list. If you inadvertently click a “check off” button, you can change your answer by clicking it a 

second time. 

Short Answers 

Space is provided to enter short answers. For example, the question, “In which government jurisdiction is the 

chamber’s incorporation or charter filed?” should be answered like this: 

 

Washington, D.C. 

 
In some cases, the answer may exist in another file. It can be copied and pasted into the text box.  

 

Where the answer is best provided by entering the entire file, the file can be attached, see below. 
  

Attachments 

In each section you are required to provide Attachments to support the application. Instructions for making 

the Attachments follow. Note that you can terminate the process before it is complete by pressing the escape 

key (ESC). 

Digital files 

If the attachment is a digital file in a common format (Microsoft Word, Excel, Powerpoint; Adobe Acrobat pdf, 

etc.), the file can attached electronically. Each attachment has an “attachment area” that looks like this: 

Attachment:  ______ 

A reminder of the instructions to attach a file can be accessed by clicking the ? icon. 



Steps for Making Attachments 

1. Go to the menu at the top of the screen. It looks like this: 

 

2. Click on “Tools” and a drop-down menu will appear. It looks like this: 

 

3. Drag the cursor over the words “Comment & Markup” to show the next drop-down menu. It looks like 

this: 

4. Click on the line “Attach a File as a Comment.” The arrow points to it. Click anywhere in the “Attachment 

Area” to trigger your computer’s operating system to open.  

5. Find the file you want to attach and click on it. 



6. Click on the “Select” button at the bottom of the window in your operating system and a new window will 

appear that looks like this: 

 

7. Click on the “Paperclip” icon, and click the “OK” button. 

A “Paperclip” will appear in the “Attachment Area.” Clicking on this icon will open the file you have attached. If 

you want to unattach the file, select the icon with your cursor and hit the delete key. 

Printed Files 

If your document is in printed form and no digital copy is available, it can be converted to a pdf file by having 

it scanned. Converting printed files to digital format is the best way to deal with these attachments. 

If you cannot have the file scanned, you can send it to the U.S. Chamber of Commerce in its printed form. The 

U.S. Chamber will have it scanned at attached to your application document for a fee of $1.00 a page. 

Essays 

Space is provided to enter essays. They must be as thorough as possible and the space will expand to 

accommodate essays of up to 1,000 words. Each essay response must be as thorough as possible.  

The space can accommodate text only. If your essay already exists in a digital format, you can save time by 

including it as an attachment. If you would like to include tables, charts, or graphs in this section as a way to 

better clarify or enhance the essays, you can put them into a digital format and attach the file. 

 



Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) 

Q We have documents that we think the U.S. Chamber of Commerce should review but there is no place for 

them to be attached in any of the sections. 

A An area has been provided at the end of Section Nine — Benchmarking — where additional attachments 

can be made. Please note that the U.S. Chamber of Commerce will review these items but may not 

include them in the basic scoring of the application.  However, if the material is noteworthy or exemplifies 

an industry best practice, it may be eligible to receive discretionary points that may affect the chamber’s 

star rating. 

 

Q There are places where we would like to add a comment but there is no text box available.  

A Generally speaking, text boxes are made available where additional information is needed to determine 

the chamber’s level of compliance.  However, if an applicant would like to insert more information, the 

applicants can always use Adobe Acrobat Reader’s “Sticky Note” feature to insert a comment anywhere in 

the application forms. To access this feature click on the Tools menu at the top of your screen and slide 

the cursor down to “Comment and Markup.” A list of features will appear with “Sticky Note” at the top. 

Click on the “Sticky Note” icon then move your cursor to the place in the document where you would like 

to make a comment. Click again and the “Sticky Note” will appear. Write your comment in the space 

provided then click anywhere in the document to continue. 

 

Q Completing the forms is time-consuming. Will we have to redo everything when it is time to renew our 

accreditation? 

A The set of nine pdf files should be kept in a safe place, with backup copies available elsewhere. At 

renewal, use the original set of pdf files, make changes only and save them under a new name, e.g. 

Section One – Governance 20??.  This new set of files is then sent to the U.S. Chamber of Commerce for 

review. No need to completely redo the forms. 

 

Q We have very large files on separate media and cannot attach them to a pdf file. 

A These files can be submitted on separate media (CDs, DVDs, USB drives, etc.) and enclosed in the same 

envelope used to send the nine sections to the U.S. Chamber of Commerce and the Accreditation fee. A 

note should be included to indicate what the files are and the section of the application forms to which 

they apply. 

 

 

 



Q Can more than one person be involved in completing the forms? How would this be done? 

A While it is best for one person to coordinate the process and serve as the communicator with the U.S. 

Chamber of Commerce, many chambers will want to involve more than one person. Chambers will often 

distribute the pdf file for certain sections to specialists who are responsible for completing them. For 

example, Section Two – Finance may be given to the CFO who completes it and sends it back to the 

person coordinating the application for the chamber.  

 

 



2. Finance 
Standard  
An Accredited chamber conforms to all Internal Revenue Service (IRS) and state accounting regulations 
and generally complies with the Statements of Financial Accounting Standards. Each chamber operates 
on a budget approved by the board of directors. An audit of the chamber’s records is made by a 
recognized auditing firm. 
 

Minimum Qualifications 
• Meets generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) 
• Has created and adheres to financial policies 
• Has an annual operational budget in place (including costs for all programs, management, and 

fundraising) and approval by appropriate committee 
• Board of directors reviews and approves financial statements 
• Accounting and reporting systems are maintained electronically 
• Maintains current financial statements 
• Maintains liability insurance 
• Maintains director and officer insurance 
• Chambers with revenue below $500,000 must: 

o Conduct an annual review by a certified financial firm   
o Conduct an audit every three years 

• Chambers with revenue of more than $500,000 must: 
o Conduct an annual review by a certified financial firm   
o Conduct an audit every other year 

• Meets IRS and state filing requirements 
• Withholds and reports taxes from employee checks to the IRS and state and local government on 

a timely basis 
 

Minimum Requirement Attachments Checklist 
 A 2.1 Financial policies and procedures manual 
 A 2.2 Detailed budget for the current year 
 A 2.3  Last fiscal year’s financial report 
 A 2.4 Three most recent monthly or quarterly financial reports 
 A 2.5 Most recent financial audit 
 A 2.6 Most recent financial review 
 A 2.7 IRS Letter of Exemption (if applicable) 
 A 2.8 Most recent state income tax report (if applicable) 

 
 

 



Section 2. Finance Minimum Requirements 

A.  Responsible Accounting 
1.  Are financial policies and procedures documented in a financial policy and 

procedures manual? 
                         

 Yes   No 

 A 2.1 Attach financial policy and procedures manuali Attachment :   

2. Please indicate which clauses are addressed in the financial policy and/or procedures manual: (check 
all that apply) 

 Finance Clauses:  

  Fiscal-year designation 

  Procedures for application of chamber revenues 

  Placement of excess revenues (i.g., do they go into a reserve account?) 

  Authorization of the chief paid executive to make disbursements upon adoption of a budget by the 
board 

  An annual review of accounts by a qualified, independent outside source and an audit every two to 
three years 

  Policies to designate or restrict funds.  (If applicable)   

 Banking Clauses: 

  Number and types of bank accounts the chamber holds 

  Account signatures – signature authority 

  How deposits are to be handled 

  Deposits are secured by bank pledged assets (if cash balances exceed FDIC insurance)  

 Investment Clauses: 

  Types of securities to be held (investment schedule) 

  Designation of person responsible for the investment of funds 

  Types and amounts of special funding to be maintained 

  Kinds of expenditures that may be charged to special funds 

  Fund transfer authorization 

3. What type of accounting system is used? (Check one) 

  Cash basis                           Accrual Basis                              Combination 

4. On what terms does the chamber pay its bills?       
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I.
OPERATING PROCEDURES


The Chamber is operated in accordance with the provisions of the Chamber Constitution and By-Laws with occasional interpretation by the Board of Directors.  The general operation procedures are outlined below.  Those relating to Chamber employees are recorded in the “Personnel” section.  Written policies to govern specific circumstances are detailed in the “Policies” section.


Additional policies and procedures may be adopted by the Board of Directors as the necessity arises.  Upon their adoption they are made a part of this manual.  Their provisions control Chamber action and administration and prevail until rescinded by action of the Board of Directors or amendment to the By-Laws.


Administration

The Chamber is administered by its President/CEO under the authority of the Board of Directors with responsibility for:  financial records, employment and supervision of Chamber personnel, management of the Chamber office facilities, coordination of committee programs, and for guiding the over-all Chamber program towards accomplishment of basic objectives.


Structure


The Board of Directors, in addition to deciding policies, is responsible for the successful, continuing program of the Chamber.  Because the responsibilities of the Board cannot always be accomplished at the monthly Board meeting, the Board delegates authority for decision making to the Executive Committee during the interval between Board meetings.  All actions of the Executive Committee are noted in the minutes of their meetings, and these minutes are furnished to all Directors.  The Board of Directors retains the authority to revise, approve, or disapprove any action of the Executive Committee that is questioned.


In nominating members to serve on the Board of Directors, the Board Management Committee strives to provide representation on the Board from the major business and professional classifications, and of all important sectors of business in Oshkosh.


Financing


Membership dues provide the funds to maintain the continuing Chamber program.  The rate of membership dues is based on the proportionate interest of the company in the local economy and, therefore, the Chamber program.  The basic rate is established by the Board of Directors and may be increased as circumstances require.  In deciding the dues rate for members with a substantial interest in the Oshkosh area, a fair-share rate is determined by comparison with other members in similar categories of business.


Dues are paid in advance on a quarterly, semi-annual, or annual basis.  A member whose dues payment is delinquent ninety days may be suspended, and his membership terminated by the President/CEO and subject to review by the Board of Directors.


Special promotion and contributed funds, other than dues, are used for the particular purpose for which they are contributed.


The Chamber is operated on a budget adopted by the Board of Directors as early as possible each fiscal year.  All committee programs are conducted within budget allocations, unless specific Board of Directors approval is given and additional funds are allocated for committee use.


Purchases of services, supplies, and equipment are made from Chamber members whenever practical, and Chamber purchases are equitably divided among Chamber members capable of providing the goods and services.


Complete records of all dues billed, money received, and funds expended are maintained.  The financial records of the Chamber are reviewed by the Executive Committee monthly.


Personnel


All Chamber personnel must abide by the office rules as outlined in the “Personnel” section.  Their hours of work, vacation schedules, and social security and unemployment compensation benefits are consistent with statutory requirements and Oshkosh’s prevailing business practices.


Committees


Committees are organized and continued by decision of the Board of Directors.  The committee structure of the Chamber is reviewed annually by the Board of Directors which discharges unneeded committees.


The basic objectives and areas of activity of the committees are established by the Board of Directors at the time the committees are activated.


The Board of Directors, upon recommendation by the Chairman, approves the selection of Committee chairpersons.  In recommending chairpersons for continuing or regular committees, the Chairman is mindful of the prior interest and leadership capability demonstrated in the committee program.


At the commencement of the year, each regular committee reviews its work program and plans its major projects for the year.  The costs of the projects are not to exceed the budget allocations for the committee.  In the event the cost of special projects is greater than the budget will cover, the Board of Directors approval of the allocation of additional funds is required.


The Chairperson of regular committees are authorized to name sub-committee chairpersons to guide projects within the over-all committee program.  Committee chairpersons are invited to attend Board of Directors meetings other than the Annual Meeting of the Board.


Policy Guidelines


Chamber programs and policies are consistent with the purpose stated in the By-Laws:  “The Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce exists to provide leadership and to serve and represent our members so their businesses and our community will prosper.”


In adopting policies and taking positions on issues within general Chamber policies, the Board of Directors follows these traditional guidelines:


To work for the advancement of the entire trading region of Oshkosh.


To work with region’s resource industries in developing policies important to them.  The Chamber endorses and supports such policies when they are consistent with the Chamber’s goals.


To express the business and professional person’s point of view on city ordinances, state and federal legislation.


To interpret and reflect the known majority opinions of the Chamber members, carefully weighing all matters especially where there is strongly divided opinion, in deciding policies and action.


To take a position on matters that affect the cost of doing business in Oshkosh, provided the matter is of major importance, even though taking the position may be contrary to the desires of a minority of the members.


To take positions on issues and, when appropriate, on political parties and candidates for office.


To be mindful of the importance of being consistent in adopting policies on state and federal legislation.


Procedures For Adopting Policies


Recommendations for policy action are made by regular and/or special committees, or groups of members after study of the issue or problem.  The recommendations are presented to the Board of Directors, in writing, by the Chairperson of the Committee or spokesperson for the members’ group, who shall meet with the Board of Directors to provide supporting information.



The Board of Directors weighs alternative views of affected Chamber members and committees and accepts, rejects, or tables action on the policy recommendations.  No publicity is given to a recommended policy until approved by the Board of Directors.  Members are advised of policy decisions by the Chairman or the President/CEO.


Direct Services


The Chamber provides all practical direct services to its members without charge.  These services include general and statistical information, maps, fact folders, descriptive folders, directories, and published compilations of information on industries, markets, and the status of business activity.  The Chamber assists members in gathering information for constructive payroll purposes.


The Chamber refers inquiries that might lead to a business opportunity in an equitable manner to its members.


The Chamber recognizes its role as the front door for Oshkosh, and answers all responsible inquiries about the area from non-members, both local and distant.  The Chamber provides all information that can be assembled for bona fide business inquiries, and provides folders and brochures within budget limitations for non-members.  Folders, directories, and supplies, when provided in substantial quantities, or directories that are costly to publish will have a charge commensurate with their cost.


II. OFFICES PRACTICES


Work Environment

It is up to each employee to maintain a pleasant work environment.  Cooperation among employees, consideration for others, and tact help create a good work atmosphere.  If you feel a situation or procedure needs changing, discuss it with the President.  However, when you criticize, be constructive and offer solutions whenever possible.


Always keep in mind when you are dealing with the public, either on the telephone or in person, that you represent the Chamber.  Be pleasant, professional, courteous, and helpful.


Telephones should not be used for personal calls, except during lunch hour.  Please keep incoming personal calls to a minimum.


Telephone Procedure


Always be friendly and courteous when answering or placing calls.  Answer the telephone by identifying the Chamber and yourself.


When placing or returning calls, always identify yourself, so that the person they are calling knows who they are talking to.  If you cannot answer a question, or fill a request yourself, ask the party to hold, while you get the information.  If you cannot get the answer immediately and someone else is not able to help, get the party’s name and telephone number, and ask if you may call them back.  Return the call as soon as possible.


When transferring a call, do not leave a person waiting on hold for more than 30 seconds. 


Reception Area


The reception area will be staffed at all times.  If the receptionist is away from his or her desk for an extended period of time, it is his or her responsibility to notify one of the other clerical staff who will remain in the reception area until the return of the receptionist.


Accidents


All accidents, however minor, are to be reported immediately to the President.  If immediate medical attention is needed, a medical claim must be filed.  Prompt reporting of accidents is for the protection of the employees, all of whom are covered by workers’ compensation.


III.  ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES


Billings


Only Chamber member businesses will be invoiced for Chamber-related activities and programs. Non-chamber member business need to pay in advance or by credit card prior to participating in Chamber-related activities. 

Check Signing


1.
Payroll service is conduct and provided by an outside vendor.

2.
Fund transfers among Chamber accounts (such as from high yield account to payroll or operating account) shall require one signature.


3.
Routine disbursements for budgeted items and postage in amounts up to $1,000 shall require one signature.


4.
All other checks shall require two signatures unless prior written authorization is obtained.


5.
The four signatories shall be annually, the President/CEO, Chairman, Chairman Elect and the Treasurer.


Debts & Obligations


No debt or obligation may be created by any employee or agent of the Chamber unless authorized by the President/CEO.


Consumer Services


The Chamber may act as a liaison between the business community and the general public in attempting to resolve consumer oriented complaints.


Employees of the Chamber will not judge nor give legal advice concerning the legitimacy of a complaint.


The Chamber will not recommend or endorse any particular company.  Employees shall only state whether or not the company is a member in good standing of the Chamber.


Donations


The Chamber shall make no money donations or buy tickets to any events or purchase advertising without the express approval of the Executive Committee unless the items were budgeted and approved by the Board during its budgeting session.


Donations - General Request


In general, requests of this nature should be made flexible enough to allow the Chamber to participate, if it is the feeling that the request has a broad appeal and is commensurate with the general objectives of the Chamber.


Endorsements


When asked to supply the name of a company in a particular business, trade or service, it shall be Chamber policy to provide the name of all members providing such product, trade or service.


If asked about the reputation of a particular company, the response shall be only whether they are a member in good standing of the Chamber.


No letters of endorsement shall be made to companies or individuals on behalf of the Chamber.  This shall also apply to the use of official stationery of the organization by committee personnel or staff persons.


Equipment/Facilities


Removal of books and directories from the Chamber library to a location other than the Chamber quarters is prohibited unless prior approval is received from the President.


A key for the office facility shall be issued only to staff personnel.


All equipment shall be used only to transact the business of the Chamber or its affiliates.


Interim Policy Procedure


Should the need arise for an interim policy decision on a specific issue, the Chamber Chairman or President/CEO shall convene the Executive Committee.  In the event this is not possible, the Chairman or President/CEO shall poll each member of the Executive Committee individually for his/her vote on the matter.


After approval by the Executive Committee, an interim policy decision is publicized as any other policy position.


Interns


Interns shall be selected from students of the University of Wisconsin-Oshkosh, Fox Valley Technical College and/or area high schools.


Interns shall be available for assignments in any department of the Chamber.  The President/CEO or administrative staff will proportion their time accordingly.


The costs of interns shall be charged to the budget of the Chamber departments according to the proportion of time spent in each department.


Public Statements - Individuals


If identifying him/herself as a Chamber Board or staff member when making a statement or otherwise communicating with outside groups or media regarding the Chamber or a position of the organization, that person shall have approval from the Chairman or President/CEO.


Member Lists/Mailing Labels


Requests for a list or for mailing labels of the Chamber shall be governed by the following policy:



Any request for a membership list shall be responded to by offering the current Community Profile/Membership Director at a rate to be fixed each year at the time of publication (plus postage if mailed).



Any no charge request for a set or sets of mailing labels shall be reviewed by the President/CEO and shall be based on the merits of the purpose for which the use is requested.



A charge of $99.95 per set of Membership mailing labels shall be paid by the requesting Chamber member organization. Non-member organization cannot purchase membership lists or mailing labels.

Legislative Policy Positions


The public positions taken by the Chamber on legislative issues at all levels of government will adhere to the following procedure:  General policy statements will be enacted by the Board of Directors which will guide committee decisions on specific pieces of legislation without formal approval of the Board.  For those specific issues not addressed by general policy statements, action by the Board of Directors or Executive Committee is necessary.


Membership - Anniversary Date


A membership account shall be active as of the month in which first payment is received.  Subsequent dues billings will be sent in the appropriate quarterly, semi-annual or annual month following initial payment.


Budget


The Executive Committee shall prepare an annual budget for the corporation, based upon input from the staff and committee chairpersons.  The Board of Directors has the overall approval authority for the budget.


Cancellations - Meeting/Event Reservations


Anyone providing the Chamber with a written or verbal commitment to attend any meeting or event shall be held liable for the expense if he/she does not attend or does not cancel their reservation within 24 hours of said meeting or event.


Charge for Publications


Publications prepared by the Chamber will, where feasible, have a sale price sufficient to cover the cost of production.  In those instances where it is produced as a membership service, the first copy to each member shall be a part of his/her membership investment.


Policy Positions - Communication to Members/Media


Policy decisions are published and interpreted for members via articles or notices in the Chamber newsletter, member mailings and/or emails.


After approval by the Board of Directors, policy decisions are made public in the following ways:


1.
Press release to broadcast and print media, and/or,


2.
Press conference or interview with the Chamber Chairman or



President/CEO.


Requests by the news media for interviews on specific details concerning policy decisions are referred to the Chamber Chairman or President/CEO.


Purchasing


1.
Routine Items:


A.
Items such as office supplies and items routinely purchased for daily operation shall be ordered without the necessity for quotes or bids if the individual item does not have a cost exceeding $25.


B.
Items of greater value which are routinely used (such as cases of duplicating paper, printed letterhead, etc.) shall be ordered based upon the results of an annual bidding process.  An exception is allowable where a judgment of quality is made.


2.
Publications:


A.
Periodicals shall be ordered based upon a contract price which is the result of an annual competitive bidding procedure of qualified printers.


B.
Flyers, notices and circulars shall be purchased following an informal quote from telephone or price lists.  The lowest qualified quote shall be used.


C.
Special publications, directories and the like shall be ordered only upon the receipt of detailed quotes based upon the specifications submitted by the Chamber to the vendors.  All such orders must be approved by the President/CEO.


3.
Capital Equipment:


All capital equipment with a value in excess of $500 shall be competitively bid among qualified Chamber members.  When the value is below $500, the President/CEO may act on the recommendation.  


4.
Services:


All purchases of services such as audit, bookkeeping or contract services shall require bids if in an amount exceeding $1000.


Relations With Other Organizations



The Chamber maintains liaison with other established organizations, both local, regional, and national, whose programs benefit Oshkosh.  The Chamber does not duplicate the work of these organizations, but when practical and constructive, the Chamber supports their programs with guidance and publicity.


The Chamber may consider co-sponsoring programs with other organizations, over which the Chamber has little control.  The President/CEO shall make the decisions. On occasion, the President/CEO, at his or her discretion, may refer that decision to the Executive Committee. 

The Chamber provides financial assistance as dues to a limited number of regional and national organizations, when their programs are of direct benefit to Oshkosh.


The Chamber does not contribute funds to health, welfare, charity, or character building organizations or cause regardless of how meritorious their programs are.


The Chamber is ever mindful of the disadvantage of proliferation of effort, and attempts to dissuade the formation of splinter organizations whose objectives are within the scope of the Chamber programs.


Special Events - Tickets


Funds received for internal events sponsored by the Chamber or headquartered through the Chamber shall be handled under the normal procedures with expenditures made only with the authorization of the President/CEO.


Tickets sold to luncheons, etc., where a definite guarantee is required, shall be paid for, or arrangement for billing approved, prior to the event.


Special Funds


Special funds by committees shall be prohibited unless first authorized by the Board of Directors and/or Executive Committee.


No advances for any special project shall be made from the general fund unless authorized by the Board of Directors and/or Executive Committee.


Only budgeted obligations shall be incurred until such funds are actually raised.


The Board has established two special funds: Capital Investment and Cash Reserve Accounts. Capital Investment Account - The uses of this fund are restricted to for the replacement of depreciable, capital assets.  The funding mechanism for this account equals our annual depreciation expense. Cash Reserve Account - As policy, the Board established a 90-day cash reserve account.  The fund is earmarked to provide a cushion for unanticipated short-term cash shortfall.  It is not to be used for special projects.  


Trade Outs - Advertising


It is the position of the Chamber to not accept trade outs of products, or service for, or in lieu of direct advertising costs in its newsletters or other printed publications of the Chamber except when approved by the President/CEO..


Expense Reimbursement


1.
Mileage for business use will be reimbursed to staff managers and the Executive/CEO in the form of a monthly car allowance to be determined by the Executive Committee.  Out of town mileage will be reimbursed at the current federal standard rate.


2.
Entertainment expense for staff managers must be cleared first with the President/CEO.


3.
Meals and lodging will be allowed with approval of the President/CEO.


4.
All expense submissions must be on Chamber expense report forms and be accompanied by receipts.


5.
Staff expense reports must be approved by the President/CEO.


Outside Organization Assistance


Services of equipment and staff for Chamber outreach programs shall apply to non-profit organizations only.  The service provided shall be consistent with and of the nature which the Chamber offers its membership on a regular basis.


Use of staff personnel to assist associations and organizations shall be on a “time and talent as available” basis to be determined by the President/CEO.


Packaging of programs to be offered outside organizations shall be worked out between the respective organization and the President/CEO of the Chamber.  Upon agreement of services provided by the Chamber, a contract will be made and the work will become a part of the Chamber’s over-all work program until such time it is mutually terminated by the parties involved.


Banking


1. Corporate accounts shall be divided among member financial institutions in reasonable proportion to their investment in the organization. Number and types of bank accounts - The Chamber has bank accounts for the following purposes: general checking account, payroll, capital investment, gift certificate, and Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce Foundation. We hold larger cash balances in certificates of deposits. All bank deposits are handled by the Staff Controller.


2. The President/CEO (or his/her designate) shall certify to financial institutions, any changes in personnel or officers authorized to sign checks. Routine disbursements for budgeted items and postage in amounts up to $1,000 shall require one signature. All other checks shall require two signatures unless prior written authorization is obtained. The four signatories shall be annually, the President/CEO, Chairman, Chairman Elect and the Treasurer. Fund transfers among Chamber accounts (such as from high yield account to payroll or operating account) shall require one signature.

3. The Executive Committee shall control the investment of corporate funds in investment certificates, money market or savings accounts available through member financial institutions. Upon authorization of the Board, the President is the responsible individual. Fund transfers among Chamber accounts (such as from high yield account to payroll or operating account) is authorized by the President. Fund transfers among Chamber accounts (such as from high yield account to payroll or operating account) is authorized by the President.

Receipt


I have received a copy of these General Operating Procedures of the Chamber this


______ day of _______________, 19_____.


___________________________________


(Employee Signature) 


THE OSHKOSH CHAMBER


GENERAL OPERATING PROCEDURES


September 25, 2001
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B.   Budget 
 A 2.2 Attach the chamber’s detailed budget for the current year. Attachment :  

 A 2.3 Attach last fiscal year’s financial report. Attachment :  

1.  How many months prior to the implementation of the budget does the chamber 
begin planning the following year’s budget? 

                               
      

2. Are income and expenses for programs, management, and fundraising detailed in 
the budget? 

 Yes   No 

3. Do all board members receive a copy of the approved budget?  Yes   No 

4. Is the board of directors required to approve the chamber’s annual budget?    Yes   No 

C.  Financial Reporting 
1. Are the chamber’s accounting and reporting systems maintained electronically?    Yes   No 

 A 2.4 Attach copies of the chamber’s three most recent monthly or quarterly financial reports. 
 Attachment :  

2. Please indicate what the chamber’s financial reports provide: (check all that apply) 

  Status and transactions of all funds for which the chamber has fiduciary responsibility 

  Current month’s income and expenses by budget account items 

  Actual year-to-date income and expenses by budget account items 

  Budget annual income and expenses by budget account item 

  Current cash and investment status of the chamber 

3. How often are financial reports reviewed by the board? (check one) 

  Monthly  Quarterly  Other        

4. Does the chamber have general liability insurance?  Yes   No 

5. Is director and officer insurance provided to directors?  Yes   No 

6. How often is the chamber audited by a certified financial auditing company?  (If the chamber’s revenue 
is more than $500,000 the chamber should be audited every other year. If the chamber’s revenue is 
under $500,000 the chamber should be audited once every three years.) 

  Annually     Every three years  

  Every other year   Other        

7. Is an internal financial review administered in years that the chamber does not 
undergo a complete audit?  (If the chamber conducts yearly audits, please skip 
this question.) 

 Yes   No 

 A 2.5 Attach a copy of the chamber’s most recent audit.ii Attachment :  

 A 2.6 Attach a copy of the chamber’s most recent financial reviewiii (If the chamber conducts 
annual audits, no financial review is required). 

 Attachment :  


Operations

		OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

		OPERATION BUDGET FY 2008-2009

												PROJECTED

										BUDGET		ACTUAL		BUDGET

										2008-2009		2007-2008		2007-2008

		BUILDING AND GROUNDS								$41,300		$49,925		$41,300

				REPAIRS & MAIN.		$15,000

				INSURANCE		$3,400

				UTILITIES		$11,900

				PROP. TAX		$11,000

		POSTAGE

		-PERMITS, METER, BULK								5,800		4,285		5,100

				CHAMBER		$5,000

				OAEDC		$800

		TELEPHONE								7,120		4,993		7,000

				CHAMBER		$5,500

				OAEDC		$1,620

		PRINTING								4,500		2,749		4,500

		-LETTERHEAD, ENVELOPES, BUS. CARDS

		EQUIPMENT REPAIR AND MAINT.								2,000		2,704		2,000

		-COPY MACH. MAINT., MISC. REPAIRS

		EQUIPMENT EXPENSE								2,000		2,273		2,000

		-POSTAGE METER RENTAL, TONER

		OFFICE SUPPLIES								8,500		8,218		8,500

		-GENERAL SUPPLIES, COPY PAPER

		INSURANCE								2,450		1,400		1,450

				CHAMBER D&O & BOND		$1,450

				OAEDC D&O		$1,000

		PROFESSIONAL FEES								11,000		11,326		11,000

		CONTINUING EDUCATION								6,000		5,409		6,000

		DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS								11,000		10,593		9,700

		MEETINGS								3,000		2,629		5,000

		COMPUTER ADMINISTRATION & SUPPORT								4,900		4,070		4,900

		TRAVEL EXPENSE								6,000		5,848		7,800

		CONTINGENCY								4,000		3,651		2,100

		OPERATIONS TOTAL								$119,570		$120,075		$118,350
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Revenue

		OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

		REVENUE PROJECTION FY 2008-2009

														PROJECTED

										BUDGET				ACTUAL				BUDGET

										2008-2009				2007-2008				2007-2008

		BILLINGS

		1,065 MEMBERS								$409,986				$409,986				$397,699

		INCREASE 3%								$12,300

		LESS-MEMBER LOSS PROJECTION								($30,000)				($31,400)				($30,000)

		ADJUSTMENTS TO ACCOUNTS

		BILLING TOTAL								$392,286				$378,586				$367,699

		NEW MEMBER INCOME ($30,000)								$16,250		(1)		$21,484				$16,250

		DUES TOTAL								$408,536				$400,070				$383,949

		CONTRACT INCOME

		OAEDC								$175,912		(2) (3)

		LEADERSHIP OSHKOSH								$41,797		(4)		$17,224				$17,220

		SCHOOL-TO-WORK								$21,300		(5)

		CONTRACT INCOME TOTAL								$239,009				$17,224				$17,220

		MISCELLANEOUS INCOME								$4,000				$2,647				$4,000

		INTEREST INCOME								$15,000				$16,264				$12,500

		TOTAL REVENUE								$666,545				$436,205				$417,669

		NOTES:

		1.  NEW MEMBER REVENUE IS $30,000 ADJUSTED FOR DEFERRED REVENUE.

		2.  OAEDC SERVICING FEE FOR FISCAL YEAR 08-09 IS DEFERRED.

		3.  CONTRACT INCOME FOR OAEDC REFLECTS OAEDC EXPENSES PAID BY THE CHAMBER,

		WHICH ARE REIMBURSED BY OAEDC.

		4.  CONTRACT INCOME FOR LEADERSHIP OSHKOSH REFLECTS TUITION FOR THE 2008-2009

		CLASS, WHICH IS ACCOUNTED FOR THROUGH THE OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

		FOUNDATION, INC

		5.  CONTRACT INCOME FOR S-T-W REFLECTS GRANTS FROM CESA AND OASD, WHICH IS

		ACCOUNTED FOR THROUGH THE OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE FOUNDATION, INC.
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Admin

		OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

		ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET FY 2008-2009

																PROJECTED

												BUDGET				ACTUAL		BUDGET

												2008-2009				2007-2008		2007-2008

		SALARIES AND COMMISSIONS

		SALARIES										$525,043		(1)		$456,075		$458,333

		TEMPORARY WAGES										$2,000				$1,000		$2,000

		COMMISSIONS										$2,000		(2)		$2,000		$2,000

		SUB TOTAL SALARIES										$529,043				$459,075		$462,333

		BENEFITS

		PENSION										$23,107				$20,152		$16,214

		HEALTH, DENTAL, LIFE										$38,823				$30,080		$29,197

		LTD										$2,809				$2,029		$1,807

		SUB TOTAL BENEFITS										$64,739		(1)		$52,260		$47,217

		PAYROLL TAXES

		FICA										$40,472				$36,267		$27,106

		FUTA										$878				$684		$600

		SUTA										$338				$281		$300

		SUB TOTAL TAXES										$41,688		(1)		$37,232		$28,006

		WORKERS COMPENSATION										$2,466		(1)		$2,349		$2,246

		ADMINISTRATIVE TOTAL										$637,936				$550,916		$539,802

		NOTES:

		1.  INCLUDES SALARIES, BENEFITS & ASSOCIATED PAYROLL TAXES FOR ALL CHAMBER, AND

		OAEDC STAFF.   CHAMBER ONLY ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS ARE AS FOLLOWS:

										PROJECTED

								BUDGET		ACTUAL		BUDGET

								2008-2009		2007-2008		2007-2008

				SALARIES				$376,653		$348,075		$350,333

				TEMPORARY WAGES				$2,000		$1,000		$2,000

				COMMISSIONS				$2,000		$2,000		$2,000

				BENEFITS				$48,775		$44,424		$47,217

				PAYROLL TAXES				$30,020		$27,609		$28,116

				WORKERS COMP.				$2,466		$2,349		$2,246

				TOTAL				$461,914		$425,457		$431,912

		2.  SUBJECT TO SUCCESS OF EXCEEDING PROGRAM BUDGETS, EXPENSE REDUCTION AND

		MEMBERSHIP SALES.
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Summary

		OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE BUDGET SUMMARY FY 97-98		OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

		BUDGET SUMMARY FY 98-99		SUMMARY BUDGET FY 2009

		$0

														BUDGET

														2008-2009

		REVENUE		REVENUE

						MEMBERSHIP DUES								$408,536

						CONTRACT INCOME								$239,009

						MISCELLANEOUS INCOME								$4,000

						INTEREST INCOME								$15,000

		TOTAL		TOTAL										$666,545

		LEADERSHIP TO SHAPE THE FUTURE OF OSHKOSH (I)		ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

						REVENUE								$29,500

						EXPENSE								$164,845

		TOTAL		TOTAL										($135,345)

		WORKFORCE (III)		COMMUNICATION, VISION, BRANDING

						REVENUE								$0

						EXPENSE								$22,000

		TOTAL		TOTAL										($22,000)

		MEMBERSHIP RECRUITMENT, PROGRAMS & SERVICES (IV)		MEMBER SERVICES

						REVENUE								$865,175

						EXPENSE								$577,765

		TOTAL		TOTAL										$287,410

		EXPENSES		EXPENSES

						ADMINISTRATION								$637,936

						OPERATION								$119,570

						DEPRECIATION								$28,000

		TOTAL												$785,506

		ENDING BALANCE		ENDING BALANCE										$11,104
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Balance Sheet

		OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

		STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

		AS OF 9/30/2008

		ASSETS:

				CASH

						PETTY CASH		62.90

						CHECKING-GENERAL ACCOUNT		75,162.40

						TEMPORARY INVESTMENT ACCOUNT		149,506.61

						CAPITAL INVESTMENT ACCOUNT		276,424.57

						WATERFEST CONCESSIONS CASH		6,060.16

						TOTAL CASH		507,216.64

				OTHER ASSETS

						GIFT CERTIFICATE CASH		137,360.00

						ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE-DUES		31,723.50

						ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS		(3,000.00)

						ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE-OTHER		3,560.59

						ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE-OCCF		(3,107.10)

						ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE-OAEDC		27,663.09

						Accounts Receivable - Propel		171.77

						DUE FROM WATERFEST INC		350.34

						PREPAID INSURANCE		2,573.50

						PREPAID EXPENSE		2,800.00

						LAND		62.00

						BUILDING		610,242.28

						ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION-BUILDING		(353,771.10)

						FURNITURE, FIXTURES & EQUIPMENT		230,201.18

						ACCUM DEPRECIATION-FURNITURE, FIXTURES & EQUIPMENT		(185,710.55)

						TOTAL OTHER ASSETS		501,119.50

						TOTAL ASSETS		$   1,008,336.14

		LIABILITIES:

						ACCOUNTS PAYABLE		34,325.04

						OTHER CONTRIBUTIONS		2,763.65

						GIFT CERTIFICATES PAYABLE		137,360.00

						CAFETERIA PLAN CLAIMS PAYABLE (FLEX)		(2,090.87)

						ACCRUED SALARIES		353.36

						ACCRUED FEDERAL AND FICA W/H		5,020.35

						ACCRUED WISCONSIN W/H		2,309.65

						ACCRUED WISCONSIN UNEMPLOYMENT TAX		33.58

						ACCRUED FEDERAL UNEMPLOYMENT TAX		43.73

						ACCRUED PROPERTY TAX		8,075.91

						ADVANCED DEPOSITS RECEIVED		8,440.00

						DEFERRED INCOME-DUES		183,747.32

						SPORTS COMPLEX CONTRIBUTION PAYABLE		2,879.41

						TOTAL LIABILITIES		383,261.13

		EQUITY:

						RETAINED EARNINGS		604,941.95

						NET INCOME (Y-T-D)		20,133.06

						ENDING RETAINED EARNINGS		625,075.01

						TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY		$   1,008,336.14





Revenues & Expenditures

		OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

		STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

		FOR THE MONTH ENDED 9/30/2008

						CURRENT				CURRENT				CURRENT				Y-T-D				Y-T-D				Y-T-D

						ACTUAL				BUDGET				VARIANCE				ACTUAL				BUDGET				VARIANCE

		REVENUE:

				MEMBERSHIP REVENUE		37,352.64				34,947.17				2,405.47				441,152.40				419,366.02				21,786.38

				PROGRAM REVENUE		58,118.57				57,656.00				462.57				711,955.67				852,155.00				(140,199.33)

				INTEREST REVENUE		830.49				1,041.66				(211.17)				16,300.11				12,500.00				3,800.11

				CONTRACTED SERVICES REVENUE		1,435.34				1,435.00				0.34				17,224.08				17,220.00				4.08

				MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE		299.95				333.34				(33.39)				3,090.20				4,000.00				(909.80)

		TOTAL REVENUE				98,036.99				95,413.17				2,623.82				1,189,722.46				1,305,241.02				(115,518.56)

		EXPENSES:

				SALARIES AND BENEFITS		37,702.56				36,366.89				1,335.67				427,161.45				436,237.34				(9,075.89)

				OPERATING AND BUILDING		20,508.25				11,921.49				8,586.76				174,421.78				169,000.00				5,421.78

				PROGRAM EXPENSE		58,128.39				18,995.00				39,133.39				528,786.48				665,250.00				(136,463.52)

				MEMBERSHIP NONRENEWALS		2,442.00				2,500.00				(58.00)				31,198.97				30,000.00				1,198.97

				MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE		404.80				375.00				29.80				7,520.72				4,500.00				3,020.72

				CONTRIBUTIONS		- 0				- 0				- 0				500.00				- 0				500.00

		TOTAL EXPENSE				119,186.00				70,158.38				49,027.62				1,169,589.40				1,304,987.34				(135,397.94)

		NET INCOME				$   (21,149.01)				$   25,254.79				$   (46,403.80)				$   20,133.06				$   253.68				$   19,879.38





Expense Schedule

		OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

		SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE-EXPENSE

		FOR THE MONTH ENDED 9/30/2008

						CURRENT				CURRENT				CURRENT				Y-T-D				Y-T-D				Y-T-D

						ACTUAL				BUDGET				VARIANCE				ACTUAL				BUDGET				VARIANCE

		SALARIES AND BENEFITS:

				SALARIES		29,865.76				29,194.38				671.38				348,407.30				350,332.50				(1,925.20)

				TEMPORARY WAGES		- 0				- 0				- 0				798.91				2,000.00				(1,201.09)

				COMMISSION EXPENSE		353.36				500.00				(146.64)				353.36				2,000.00				(1,646.64)

				SOCIAL SECURITY TAX		2,284.86				2,258.87				25.99				25,311.63				27,106.44				(1,794.81)

				FEDERAL UNEMPLOYMENT TAX		43.73				- 0				43.73				616.00				710.00				(94.00)

				WI UNEMPLOYMENT TAX		33.58				- 0				33.58				289.35				300.00				(10.65)

				HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE INS.		2,332.94				2,433.05				(100.11)				28,199.89				29,196.51				(996.62)

				HRA EXPENSES		242.24				291.66				(49.42)				2,885.74				3,500.00				(614.26)

				CAFETERIA PLAN EXPENSES		- 0				- 0				- 0				50.00				500.00				(450.00)

				DISABILITY INSURANCE		185.22				150.59				34.63				1,957.17				1,806.97				150.20

				WORKERS COMPENSATION		- 0				187.17				(187.17)				2,349.00				2,245.95				103.05

				PENSION CONTRIBUTION		2,360.87				1,351.17				1,009.70				15,793.10				16,213.97				(420.87)

				PENSION EXPENSE		- 0				- 0				- 0				150.00				325.00				(175.00)

				TOTAL SALARIES AND BENEIFTS		37,702.56				36,366.89				1,335.67				427,161.45				436,237.34				(9,075.89)

		OPERATING AND BUILDING:

				OFFICE SUPPLIES		1,433.96				708.34				725.62				8,633.76				8,500.00				133.76

				TELEPHONE		309.93				583.33				(273.40)				4,514.84				7,000.00				(2,485.16)

				POSTAGE		550.67				425.00				125.67				4,459.44				5,100.00				(640.56)

				MEMBERSHIP EXPENSE		788.68				450.00				338.68				10,742.52				11,250.00				(507.48)

				MEMBERSHIP COMMISSION EXPENSE		- 0				- 0				- 0				100.00				- 0				100.00

				PRINTING		- 0				375.00				(375.00)				2,538.44				4,500.00				(1,961.56)

				DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS		2,185.16				700.00				1,485.16				11,939.75				9,700.00				2,239.75

				UTILITIES		994.00				991.66				2.34				12,944.06				11,900.00				1,044.06

				BUILDING REPAIR & MAIN.		636.00				1,250.00				(614.00)				21,948.52				15,000.00				6,948.52

				BUILDING INSURANCE		260.17				283.34				(23.17)				3,122.04				3,400.00				(277.96)

				EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAIN.		37.50				166.66				(129.16)				2,601.45				2,000.00				601.45

				EQUIPMENT EXPENSE		- 0				166.66				(166.66)				1,940.02				2,000.00				(59.98)

				COMPUTER ADMINISTRATION		1,765.43				408.34				1,357.09				5,084.21				4,900.00				184.21

				INSURANCE EXPENSE		72.46				120.84				(48.38)				1,574.96				1,450.00				124.96

				MARKETING / PUBLIC RELATIONS		264.50				375.00				(110.50)				6,963.13				14,000.00				(7,036.87)

				MEETINGS		927.64				416.66				510.98				2,794.33				5,000.00				(2,205.67)

				EDUCATION & CONFERENCES		- 0				500.00				(500.00)				4,409.31				6,000.00				(1,590.69)

				BOARD & STRATEGIC PLANNING		- 0				- 0				- 0				4,212.28				1,000.00				3,212.28

				TRAVEL EXPENSE		472.82				650.00				(177.18)				5,496.64				7,800.00				(2,303.36)

				LEGAL & PROFESSIONAL		156.96				350.00				(193.04)				11,872.32				11,000.00				872.32

				PROPERTY TAX EXPENSE		885.00				916.66				(31.66)				10,620.00				11,000.00				(380.00)

				FEDERAL INCOME TAX		- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				1,000.00				(1,000.00)

				STATE INCOME TAX		- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				500.00				(500.00)

				DEPRECIATION EXPENSE		8,767.37				2,084.00				6,683.37				35,909.76				25,000.00				10,909.76

				TOTAL OPERATING AND BUILDING		20,508.25				11,921.49				8,586.76				174,421.78				169,000.00				5,421.78

		OTHER EXPENSES:

				CREDIT CARD PROCESSING FEES		249.65				200.00				49.65				3,740.60				2,400.00				1,340.60

				MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE		155.15				175.00				(19.85)				3,780.12				2,100.00				1,680.12

				BAD DEBT EXPENSE		2,442.00				2,500.00				(58.00)				31,198.97				30,000.00				1,198.97

				CONTRIBUTIONS		- 0				- 0				- 0				500.00				- 0				500.00

				TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES		2,846.80				2,875.00				(28.20)				39,219.69				34,500.00				4,719.69

		TOTAL EXPENSES				$   61,057.61				$   51,163.38				$   9,894.23				$   640,802.92				$   639,737.34				$   1,065.58





Program Schedule

		OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

		SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE-PROGRAMS

		FOR THE MONTH ENDED 9/30/2008

						CURRENT				CURRENT				CURRENT				Y-T-D				Y-T-D				Y-T-D

						ACTUAL				BUDGET				VARIANCE				ACTUAL				BUDGET				VARIANCE

		PROGRAM REVENUE:

				AMBASSADOR		- 0				- 0				- 0				156.00				- 0				156.00

				ANNUAL MEETING		- 0				- 0				- 0				22,275.00				22,325.00				(50.00)

				GOLF OUTING		(365.00)				- 0				(365.00)				57,248.00				54,780.00				2,468.00

				BUSINESS AFTER HOURS		1,573.00				1,000.00				573.00				14,251.50				12,500.00				1,751.50

				BUSINESS EXPO		- 0				- 0				- 0				42,163.00				48,675.00				(6,512.00)

				CONCERTS IN THE PARK / EXTRAVAGANZA		- 0				- 0				- 0				10,600.00				10,150.00				450.00

				GIFT CERTIFICATE REVENUE		25,618.00				22,000.00				3,618.00				25,618.00				22,000.00				3,618.00

				HUMAN RESOURCE COUNCIL REVENUE		- 0				100.00				(100.00)				30.00				1,200.00				(1,170.00)

				SMALL BUSINESS SEMINARS		- 0				- 0				- 0				13,485.00				12,625.00				860.00

				MISCELLANEOUS PROGRAMS		- 0				209.00				(209.00)				150.00				4,500.00				(4,350.00)

				NEWSLETTER		624.00				1,000.00				(376.00)				43,313.50				43,800.00				(486.50)

				WEB PAGE ADVERTISING		- 0				625.00				(625.00)				- 0				5,000.00				(5,000.00)

				MEMBERSHIP DIRECTORY		20,000.00				20,000.00				- 0				20,530.00				20,000.00				530.00

				MEMBER 2 MEMBER REVENUE		243.75				- 0				243.75				4,095.01				4,000.00				95.01

				MAP REVENUE		- 0				- 0				- 0				5,000.00				5,000.00				- 0

				MISCELLANEOUS PUBLICATIONS		150.00				- 0				150.00				1,380.00				- 0				1,380.00

				ROYALTY REVENUE		10,022.88				12,722.00				(2,699.12)				122,245.23				119,650.00				2,595.23

				WATERFEST CONCESSIONS REVENUE		251.94				- 0				251.94				314,365.43				450,000.00				(135,634.57)

				HOLIDAY PARADE REVENUE		- 0				- 0				- 0				15,050.00				15,950.00				(900.00)

		TOTAL PROGRAM REVENUE				58,118.57				57,656.00				462.57				711,955.67				852,155.00				(140,199.33)

		PROGRAM EXPENSE:

				AMBASSADOR		45.16				- 0				45.16				671.57				- 0				671.57

				ANNUAL MEETING		- 0				- 0				- 0				5,039.59				8,975.00				(3,935.41)

				GOLF OUTING		1,743.30				- 0				1,743.30				29,435.31				28,605.00				830.31

				BUSINESS AFTER HOURS		- 0				125.00				(125.00)				1,318.88				1,500.00				(181.12)

				BUSINESS EXPO		- 0				- 0				- 0				6,786.09				11,700.00				(4,913.91)

				CONCERTS IN THE PARK / EXTRAVAGANZA		- 0				600.00				(600.00)				3,532.10				4,000.00				(467.90)

				GIFT CERTIFICATE EXPENSE		1,415.40				500.00				915.40				7,515.88				10,000.00				(2,484.12)

				HUMAN RESOURCE COUNCIL		- 0				100.00				(100.00)				- 0				1,200.00				(1,200.00)

				GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS EXPENSES		- 0				550.00				(550.00)				6,638.35				9,750.00				(3,111.65)

				INTERNATIOAL TRADE		- 0				- 0				- 0				10,000.00				10,500.00				(500.00)

				COMMUNITY PROGRAMS		615.50				3,000.00				(2,384.50)				7,050.25				6,000.00				1,050.25

				ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT		7,500.00				10,000.00				(2,500.00)				95,653.75				111,000.00				(15,346.25)

				SMALL BUSINESS SEMINARS		- 0				- 0				- 0				11,303.53				11,150.00				153.53

				MISCELLANEOUS PROGRAMS		- 0				125.00				(125.00)				2,310.00				1,500.00				810.00

				NEWSLETTER		4,447.35				3,995.00				452.35				26,982.22				27,570.00				(587.78)

				MEMBERSHIP DIRECTORY		- 0				- 0				- 0				70.11				- 0				70.11

				WEB PAGE EXPENSE		- 0				- 0				- 0				187.00				- 0				187.00

				WATERFEST CONCESSIONS EXPENSE		42,361.68				- 0				42,361.68				304,498.73				410,000.00				(105,501.27)

				HOLIDAY PARADE EXPENSE		- 0				- 0				- 0				8,811.37				9,950.00				(1,138.63)

				MISCELLANEOUS PUBLICATIONS		- 0				- 0				- 0				981.75				1,850.00				(868.25)

		TOTAL PROGRAM EXPENSE				58,128.39				18,995.00				39,133.39				528,786.48				665,250.00				(136,463.52)

		PROGRAM INCOME (LOSS)				$   (9.82)				$   38,661.00				$   (38,670.82)				$   183,169.19				$   186,905.00				$   (3,735.81)
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Balance Sheet

		OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

		STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

		AS OF 4/30/2009

		ASSETS:

				CASH

						PETTY CASH		119.12

						CHECKING-GENERAL ACCOUNT		15,964.52

						TEMPORARY INVESTMENT ACCOUNT		128,064.84

						CAPITAL INVESTMENT ACCOUNT		283,425.86

						WATERFEST CONCESSIONS CASH		44.38

						TOTAL CASH		427,618.72

				OTHER ASSETS

						GIFT CERTIFICATE CASH		149,007.48

						ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE-DUES		56,749.24

						ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS		(3,000.00)

						ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE-OTHER		13,444.07

						ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE-OCCF		1,543.91

						ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE-OAEDC		18,465.22

						Accounts Receivable - Propel		196.14

						DUE FROM WATERFEST INC		1,065.34

						PREPAID INSURANCE		3,036.31

						PREPAID EXPENSE		25,125.00

						LAND		18,755.75

						BUILDING		591,548.53

						ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION-BUILDING		(361,980.93)

						FURNITURE, FIXTURES & EQUIPMENT		221,882.70

						ACCUM DEPRECIATION-FURNITURE, FIXTURES & EQUIPMENT		(181,825.68)

						TOTAL OTHER ASSETS		554,013.08

						TOTAL ASSETS		$   981,631.80

		LIABILITIES:

						ACCOUNTS PAYABLE		6,078.34

						OTHER CONTRIBUTIONS		8,988.45

						GIFT CERTIFICATES PAYABLE		149,007.48

						CAFETERIA PLAN CLAIMS PAYABLE (FLEX)		(875.93)

						401K CONTRIBUTION PAYABLE		910.05

						DUE TO GIFT CERT PROGRAM		550.00

						DUE TO OSHKOSH SAFETY COUNCIL		240.00

						ACCRUED WISCONSIN W/H		2,182.30

						ACCRUED WISCONSIN UNEMPLOYMENT TAX		(33.58)

						ACCRUED FEDERAL UNEMPLOYMENT TAX		(43.73)

						UNITED FUND PAYROLL W/H		1,096.00

						ACCRUED PROPERTY TAX		9,087.21

						ADVANCED DEPOSITS RECEIVED		1,470.00

						DEFERRED INCOME-DUES		222,750.86

						SPORTS COMPLEX CONTRIBUTION PAYABLE		26,006.60

						TOTAL LIABILITIES		427,414.05

		EQUITY:

						RETAINED EARNINGS		579,246.53

						NET INCOME (Y-T-D)		(25,028.78)

						ENDING RETAINED EARNINGS		554,217.75

						TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY		$   981,631.80





Revenues & Expenditures

		OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

		STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

		FOR THE MONTH ENDED 4/30/2009

						CURRENT				CURRENT				CURRENT				Y-T-D				Y-T-D				Y-T-D

						ACTUAL				BUDGET				VARIANCE				ACTUAL				BUDGET				VARIANCE

		REVENUE:

				MEMBERSHIP REVENUE		34,537.08				36,544.67				(2,007.59)				248,453.01				255,812.69				(7,359.68)

				PROGRAM REVENUE		19,804.04				20,500.00				(695.96)				211,728.16				223,625.00				(11,896.84)

				INTEREST REVENUE		1,101.33				1,250.00				(148.67)				7,780.32				8,750.00				(969.68)

				CONTRACTED SERVICES REVENUE		1,518.68				1,346.00				172.68				10,630.76				9,417.00				1,213.76

				MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE		199.96				333.33				(133.37)				1,613.16				2,333.31				(720.15)

		TOTAL REVENUE				57,161.09				59,974.00				(2,812.91)				480,205.41				499,938.00				(19,732.59)

		EXPENSES:

				SALARIES AND BENEFITS		38,319.66				36,440.33				1,879.33				253,521.12				260,607.23				(7,086.11)

				OPERATING AND BUILDING		8,698.52				12,994.17				(4,295.65)				93,307.61				109,154.19				(15,846.58)

				PROGRAM EXPENSE		13,227.27				13,764.58				(537.31)				138,505.37				152,532.06				(14,026.69)

				MEMBERSHIP NONRENEWALS		2,459.00				2,500.00				(41.00)				15,603.25				17,500.00				(1,896.75)

				MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE		615.57				666.66				(51.09)				4,196.84				4,666.62				(469.78)

				CONTRIBUTIONS		- 0				- 0				- 0				100.00				- 0				100.00

		TOTAL EXPENSE				63,320.02				66,365.74				(3,045.72)				505,234.19				544,460.10				(39,225.91)

		NET INCOME				(6,158.93)				(6,391.74)				232.81				(25,028.78)				(44,522.10)				19,493.32





Expense Schedule

		OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

		SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE-EXPENSE

		FOR THE MONTH ENDED 4/30/2009

						CURRENT				CURRENT				CURRENT				Y-T-D				Y-T-D				Y-T-D

						ACTUAL				BUDGET				VARIANCE				ACTUAL				BUDGET				VARIANCE

		SALARIES AND BENEFITS:

				SALARIES		29,612.13				29,721.08				(108.95)				207,848.28				208,047.56				(199.28)

				TEMPORARY WAGES		- 0				- 0				- 0				458.01				1,000.00				(541.99)

				COMMISSION EXPENSE		- 0				- 0				- 0				407.50				750.00				(342.50)

				SOCIAL SECURITY TAX		3,790.04				2,299.17				1,490.87				14,611.45				16,094.15				(1,482.70)

				FEDERAL UNEMPLOYMENT TAX		461.89				- 0				461.89				461.89				600.00				(138.11)

				WI UNEMPLOYMENT TAX		165.93				- 0				165.93				165.93				300.00				(134.07)

				HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE INS.		2,652.92				2,470.17				182.75				17,457.23				17,291.15				166.08

				HRA EXPENSES		50.00				100.00				(50.00)				1,122.95				3,250.00				(2,127.05)

				CAFETERIA PLAN EXPENSES		- 0				50.00				(50.00)				- 0				350.00				(350.00)

				DISABILITY INSURANCE		201.06				187.08				13.98				1,407.42				1,309.56				97.86

				WORKERS COMPENSATION		- 0				205.50				(205.50)				475.00				1,438.50				(963.50)

				PENSION CONTRIBUTION		1,385.69				1,407.33				(21.64)				9,105.46				9,851.31				(745.85)

				PENSION EXPENSE		- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				325.00				(325.00)

				TOTAL SALARIES AND BENEIFTS		38,319.66				36,440.33				1,879.33				253,521.12				260,607.23				(7,086.11)

		OPERATING AND BUILDING:

				OFFICE SUPPLIES		124.28				708.33				(584.05)				4,466.89				4,958.31				(491.42)

				TELEPHONE		317.77				458.33				(140.56)				2,026.41				3,208.31				(1,181.90)

				POSTAGE		(569.18)				416.67				(985.85)				956.55				2,916.69				(1,960.14)

				MEMBERSHIP EXPENSE		177.35				565.00				(387.65)				1,706.05				4,350.00				(2,643.95)

				MEMBERSHIP COMMISSION EXPENSE		- 0				- 0				- 0				701.88				- 0				701.88

				PRINTING		- 0				375.00				(375.00)				1,018.29				2,625.00				(1,606.71)

				DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS		845.61				916.67				(71.06)				6,918.32				6,416.69				501.63

				UTILITIES		994.00				991.67				2.33				7,482.80				6,941.69				541.11

				BUILDING REPAIR & MAIN.		1,439.88				1,250.00				189.88				15,011.40				8,750.00				6,261.40

				BUILDING INSURANCE		250.17				283.33				(33.16)				1,751.19				1,983.31				(232.12)

				EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAIN.		120.70				166.67				(45.97)				1,601.57				1,166.69				434.88

				EQUIPMENT EXPENSE		209.75				166.67				43.08				1,426.27				1,166.69				259.58

				COMPUTER ADMINISTRATION		204.76				408.33				(203.57)				2,569.49				2,858.31				(288.82)

				INSURANCE EXPENSE		102.50				120.83				(18.33)				1,092.50				845.81				246.69

				MARKETING / PUBLIC RELATIONS		- 0				1,000.00				(1,000.00)				735.00				20,400.00				(19,665.00)

				MEETINGS		285.48				250.00				35.48				3,027.73				1,750.00				1,277.73

				EDUCATION & CONFERENCES		175.00				500.00				(325.00)				1,723.28				3,500.00				(1,776.72)

				BOARD & STRATEGIC PLANNING		- 0				166.67				(166.67)				182.46				1,166.69				(984.23)

				TRAVEL EXPENSE		450.00				500.00				(50.00)				4,511.51				3,500.00				1,011.51

				LEGAL & PROFESSIONAL		217.96				500.00				(282.04)				10,930.59				6,400.00				4,530.59

				PROPERTY TAX EXPENSE		885.00				916.67				(31.67)				6,195.00				6,416.69				(221.69)

				FEDERAL INCOME TAX		- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				1,000.00				(1,000.00)

				STATE INCOME TAX		- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				500.00				(500.00)

				DEPRECIATION EXPENSE		2,467.49				2,333.33				134.16				17,272.43				16,333.31				939.12

				TOTAL OPERATING AND BUILDING		8,698.52				12,994.17				(4,295.65)				93,307.61				109,154.19				(15,846.58)

		OTHER EXPENSES:

				CREDIT CARD PROCESSING FEES		487.11				333.33				153.78				2,910.97				2,333.31				577.66

				MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE		128.46				333.33				(204.87)				1,285.87				2,333.31				(1,047.44)

				BAD DEBT EXPENSE		2,459.00				2,500.00				(41.00)				15,603.25				17,500.00				(1,896.75)

				CONTRIBUTIONS		- 0				- 0				- 0				100.00				- 0				100.00

				TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES		3,074.57				3,166.66				(92.09)				19,900.09				22,166.62				(2,266.53)

		TOTAL EXPENSES				$   50,092.75				$   52,601.16				$   (2,508.41)				$   366,728.82				$   391,928.04				$   (25,199.22)





Program Schedule

		OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

		SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE-PROGRAMS

		FOR THE MONTH ENDED 4/30/2009

						CURRENT				CURRENT				CURRENT				Y-T-D				Y-T-D				Y-T-D

						ACTUAL				BUDGET				VARIANCE				ACTUAL				BUDGET				VARIANCE

		PROGRAM REVENUE:

				ANNUAL MEETING		100.00				- 0				100.00				20,375.00				22,500.00				(2,125.00)

				BUSINESS AFTER HOURS		597.05				900.00				(302.95)				9,106.05				9,050.00				56.05

				BUSINESS EXPO		(825.00)				- 0				(825.00)				40,402.00				46,000.00				(5,598.00)

				CONCERTS IN THE PARK / EXTRAVAGANZA		1,700.00				- 0				1,700.00				1,700.00				- 0				1,700.00

				COMMUNITY PROGRAMS		- 0				- 0				- 0				30.00				- 0				30.00

				SMALL BUSINESS SEMINARS		- 0				- 0				- 0				15,875.00				14,175.00				1,700.00

				MISCELLANEOUS PROGRAMS		- 0				100.00				(100.00)				- 0				1,200.00				(1,200.00)

				NEWSLETTER		4,963.00				6,800.00				(1,837.00)				29,260.00				29,300.00				(40.00)

				WEB PAGE ADVERTISING		- 0				700.00				(700.00)				475.00				5,000.00				(4,525.00)

				MEMBERSHIP DIRECTORY		- 0				- 0				- 0				218.36				- 0				218.36

				MEMBER 2 MEMBER REVENUE		227.50				- 0				227.50				4,022.50				3,400.00				622.50

				MAP REVENUE		3,000.00				- 0				3,000.00				5,000.00				2,000.00				3,000.00

				MISCELLANEOUS PUBLICATIONS		30.00				- 0				30.00				420.00				- 0				420.00

				ROYALTY REVENUE		10,011.49				12,000.00				(1,988.51)				70,604.25				75,000.00				(4,395.75)

				WATERFEST CONCESSIONS REVENUE		- 0				- 0				- 0				40.00				- 0				40.00

				HOLIDAY PARADE REVENUE		- 0				- 0				- 0				14,200.00				16,000.00				(1,800.00)

		TOTAL PROGRAM REVENUE				19,804.04				20,500.00				(695.96)				211,728.16				223,625.00				(11,896.84)

		PROGRAM EXPENSE:

				ADVERTISING		- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				1,000.00				(1,000.00)

				AMBASSADOR		24.15				- 0				24.15				83.24				- 0				83.24

				ANNUAL MEETING		- 0				- 0				- 0				9,672.27				13,500.00				(3,827.73)

				GOLF OUTING		- 0				1,000.00				(1,000.00)				400.00				1,000.00				(600.00)

				BUSINESS AFTER HOURS		- 0				- 0				- 0				31.50				1,350.00				(1,318.50)

				BUSINESS EXPO		- 0				- 0				- 0				6,109.23				10,400.00				(4,290.77)

				CONCERTS IN THE PARK / EXTRAVAGANZA		- 0				- 0				- 0				33.60				- 0				33.60

				GIFT CERTIFICATE EXPENSE		828.45				- 0				828.45				5,013.33				5,250.00				(236.67)

				GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS EXPENSES		284.40				1,500.00				(1,215.60)				1,384.95				7,600.00				(6,215.05)

				INTERNATIOAL TRADE		- 0				2,411.25				(2,411.25)				7,236.00				7,233.75				2.25

				COMMUNITY PROGRAMS		- 0				- 0				- 0				616.85				- 0				616.85

				ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT		8,333.33				8,333.33				- 0				66,535.40				68,833.31				(2,297.91)

				SMALL BUSINESS SEMINARS		- 0				- 0				- 0				12,779.20				11,950.00				829.20

				MISCELLANEOUS PROGRAMS		- 0				- 0				- 0				38.08				- 0				38.08

				NEWSLETTER		3,706.94				520.00				3,186.94				16,772.48				14,065.00				2,707.48

				WEB PAGE EXPENSE		50.00				- 0				50.00				1,481.75				- 0				1,481.75

				WATERFEST CONCESSIONS EXPENSE		- 0				- 0				- 0				(210.00)				- 0				(210.00)

				HOLIDAY PARADE EXPENSE		- 0				- 0				- 0				9,286.39				8,500.00				786.39

				MISCELLANEOUS PUBLICATIONS		- 0				- 0				- 0				1,241.10				1,850.00				(608.90)

		TOTAL PROGRAM EXPENSE				13,227.27				13,764.58				(537.31)				138,505.37				152,532.06				(14,026.69)

		PROGRAM INCOME (LOSS)				$   6,576.77				$   6,735.42				$   (158.65)				$   73,222.79				$   71,092.94				$   2,129.85





mark
File Attachment
A 2.4 Financials OCC - April '09.xls


Balance Sheet

		OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

		STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

		AS OF 2/28/2009

		ASSETS:

				CASH

						PETTY CASH		184.96

						CHECKING-GENERAL ACCOUNT		33,003.81

						TEMPORARY INVESTMENT ACCOUNT		152,078.74

						CAPITAL INVESTMENT ACCOUNT		275,258.88

						WATERFEST CONCESSIONS CASH		45.46

						TOTAL CASH		460,571.85

				OTHER ASSETS

						GIFT CERTIFICATE CASH		162,004.48

						ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE-DUES		29,258.92

						ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS		(3,000.00)

						ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE-OTHER		30,660.95

						ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE-OCCF		3,017.49

						ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE-OAEDC		23,989.31

						Accounts Receivable - Propel		109.47

						DUE FROM WATERFEST INC		1,065.34

						PREPAID INSURANCE		2,449.65

						LAND		18,755.75

						BUILDING		591,548.53

						ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION-BUILDING		(359,619.55)

						FURNITURE, FIXTURES & EQUIPMENT		221,882.70

						ACCUM DEPRECIATION-FURNITURE, FIXTURES & EQUIPMENT		(179,252.08)

						TOTAL OTHER ASSETS		542,870.96

						TOTAL ASSETS		$   1,003,442.81

		LIABILITIES:

						ACCOUNTS PAYABLE		34,542.22

						OTHER CONTRIBUTIONS		8,988.45

						GIFT CERTIFICATES PAYABLE		162,004.48

						CAFETERIA PLAN CLAIMS PAYABLE (FLEX)		(3,017.02)

						401K CONTRIBUTION PAYABLE		947.74

						DUE TO GIFT CERT PROGRAM		550.00

						DUE TO OSHKOSH SAFETY COUNCIL		240.00

						ACCRUED WISCONSIN W/H		3,262.41

						UNITED FUND PAYROLL W/H		792.00

						ACCRUED PROPERTY TAX		10,151.87

						DEFERRED INCOME-DUES		184,035.79

						SPORTS COMPLEX CONTRIBUTION PAYABLE		26,006.60

						TOTAL LIABILITIES		428,504.54

		EQUITY:

						RETAINED EARNINGS		579,246.53

						NET INCOME (Y-T-D)		(4,308.26)

						ENDING RETAINED EARNINGS		574,938.27

						TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY		$   1,003,442.81





Income Statement

		OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

		STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

		FOR THE MONTH ENDED 2/28/2009

						CURRENT				CURRENT				CURRENT				Y-T-D				Y-T-D				Y-T-D

						ACTUAL				BUDGET				VARIANCE				ACTUAL				BUDGET				VARIANCE

		REVENUE:

				MEMBERSHIP REVENUE		35,878.35				36,544.67				(666.32)				172,867.35				182,723.35				(9,856.00)

				PROGRAM REVENUE		51,079.52				50,500.00				579.52				179,108.58				189,725.00				(10,616.42)

				INTEREST REVENUE		1,103.53				1,250.00				(146.47)				5,572.04				6,250.00				(677.96)

				CONTRACTED SERVICES REVENUE		1,518.68				1,345.00				173.68				7,593.40				6,725.00				868.40

				MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE		- 0				333.33				(333.33)				1,253.20				1,666.65				(413.45)

		TOTAL REVENUE				89,580.08				89,973.00				(392.92)				366,394.57				387,090.00				(20,695.43)

		EXPENSES:

				SALARIES AND BENEFITS		36,440.40				37,640.33				(1,199.93)				180,043.56				185,776.57				(5,733.01)

				OPERATING AND BUILDING		14,344.54				17,894.17				(3,549.63)				70,163.25				73,165.85				(3,002.60)

				PROGRAM EXPENSE		37,412.05				43,603.33				(6,191.28)				106,732.48				124,339.15				(17,606.67)

				MEMBERSHIP NONRENEWALS		3,152.00				2,500.00				652.00				10,683.25				12,500.00				(1,816.75)

				MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE		422.54				666.66				(244.12)				2,980.29				3,333.30				(353.01)

				CONTRIBUTIONS		- 0				- 0				- 0				100.00				- 0				100.00

		TOTAL EXPENSE				91,771.53				102,304.49				(10,532.96)				370,702.83				399,114.87				(28,412.04)

		NET INCOME				$   (2,191.45)				$   (12,331.49)				$   10,140.04				$   (4,308.26)				$   (12,024.87)				$   7,716.61





Expense Schedule

		OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

		SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE-EXPENSE

		FOR THE MONTH ENDED 2/28/2009

						CURRENT				CURRENT				CURRENT				Y-T-D				Y-T-D				Y-T-D

						ACTUAL				BUDGET				VARIANCE				ACTUAL				BUDGET				VARIANCE

		SALARIES AND BENEFITS:

				SALARIES		29,400.01				29,721.08				(321.07)				148,558.37				148,605.40				(47.03)

				TEMPORARY WAGES		458.01				- 0				458.01				458.01				500.00				(41.99)

				COMMISSION EXPENSE		- 0				- 0				- 0				132.50				500.00				(367.50)

				SOCIAL SECURITY TAX		2,247.15				2,299.17				(52.02)				10,079.72				11,495.81				(1,416.09)

				FEDERAL UNEMPLOYMENT TAX		- 0				200.00				(200.00)				- 0				400.00				(400.00)

				WI UNEMPLOYMENT TAX		- 0				100.00				(100.00)				- 0				200.00				(200.00)

				HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE INS.		2,652.92				2,470.17				182.75				12,151.39				12,350.81				(199.42)

				HRA EXPENSES		50.00				1,000.00				(950.00)				886.88				2,150.00				(1,263.12)

				CAFETERIA PLAN EXPENSES		- 0				50.00				(50.00)				- 0				250.00				(250.00)

				DISABILITY INSURANCE		201.06				187.08				13.98				1,005.30				935.40				69.90

				WORKERS COMPENSATION		- 0				205.50				(205.50)				475.00				1,027.50				(552.50)

				PENSION CONTRIBUTION		1,431.25				1,407.33				23.92				6,296.39				7,036.65				(740.26)

				PENSION EXPENSE		- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				325.00				(325.00)

		TOTAL SALARIES AND BENEIFTS				36,440.40				37,640.33				(1,199.93)				180,043.56				185,776.57				(5,733.01)

		OPERATING AND BUILDING:

				OFFICE SUPPLIES		280.62				708.33				(427.71)				2,425.51				3,541.65				(1,116.14)

				TELEPHONE		372.21				458.33				(86.12)				1,345.31				2,291.65				(946.34)

				POSTAGE		947.51				416.67				530.84				897.48				2,083.35				(1,185.87)

				MEMBERSHIP EXPENSE		- 0				565.00				(565.00)				1,359.14				3,220.00				(1,860.86)

				MEMBERSHIP COMMISSION EXPENSE		194.38				- 0				194.38				344.38				- 0				344.38

				PRINTING		- 0				375.00				(375.00)				680.40				1,875.00				(1,194.60)

				DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS		864.62				916.67				(52.05)				5,657.09				4,583.35				1,073.74

				UTILITIES		1,232.04				991.67				240.37				5,494.80				4,958.35				536.45

				BUILDING REPAIR & MAIN.		2,645.82				1,250.00				1,395.82				11,647.52				6,250.00				5,397.52

				BUILDING INSURANCE		250.17				283.33				(33.16)				1,250.85				1,416.65				(165.80)

				EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAIN.		120.70				166.67				(45.97)				1,287.72				833.35				454.37

				EQUIPMENT EXPENSE		730.62				166.67				563.95				1,216.52				833.35				383.17

				COMPUTER ADMINISTRATION		136.51				408.33				(271.82)				1,301.08				2,041.65				(740.57)

				INSURANCE EXPENSE		102.50				120.83				(18.33)				887.50				604.15				283.35

				MARKETING / PUBLIC RELATIONS		350.00				4,400.00				(4,050.00)				735.00				8,400.00				(7,665.00)

				MEETINGS		319.55				250.00				69.55				2,645.63				1,250.00				1,395.63

				EDUCATION & CONFERENCES		691.58				500.00				191.58				1,548.28				2,500.00				(951.72)

				BOARD & STRATEGIC PLANNING		- 0				166.67				(166.67)				182.46				833.35				(650.89)

				TRAVEL EXPENSE		474.26				500.00				(25.74)				3,110.13				2,500.00				610.13

				LEGAL & PROFESSIONAL		1,278.96				500.00				778.96				9,384.00				5,400.00				3,984.00

				PROPERTY TAX EXPENSE		885.00				916.67				(31.67)				4,425.00				4,583.35				(158.35)

				FEDERAL INCOME TAX		- 0				1,000.00				(1,000.00)				- 0				1,000.00				(1,000.00)

				STATE INCOME TAX		- 0				500.00				(500.00)				- 0				500.00				(500.00)

				DEPRECIATION EXPENSE		2,467.49				2,333.33				134.16				12,337.45				11,666.65				670.80

		TOTAL OPERATING AND BUILDING				14,344.54				17,894.17				(3,549.63)				70,163.25				73,165.85				(3,002.60)

		OTHER EXPENSES:

				CREDIT CARD PROCESSING FEES		339.19				333.33				5.86				1,835.62				1,666.65				168.97

				MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE		83.35				333.33				(249.98)				1,144.67				1,666.65				(521.98)

				BAD DEBT EXPENSE		3,152.00				2,500.00				652.00				10,683.25				12,500.00				(1,816.75)

				CONTRIBUTIONS		- 0				- 0				- 0				100.00				- 0				100.00

		TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES				3,574.54				3,166.66				407.88				13,763.54				15,833.30				(2,069.76)

		TOTAL EXPENSES				$   54,359.48				$   58,701.16				$   (4,341.68)				$   263,970.35				$   274,775.72				$   (10,805.37)





Program Schedule

		OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

		SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE-PROGRAMS

		FOR THE MONTH ENDED 2/28/2009

						CURRENT				CURRENT				CURRENT				Y-T-D				Y-T-D				Y-T-D

						ACTUAL				BUDGET				VARIANCE				ACTUAL				BUDGET				VARIANCE

		PROGRAM REVENUE:

				ANNUAL MEETING		4,825.00				7,000.00				(2,175.00)				20,375.00				22,500.00				(2,125.00)

				BUSINESS AFTER HOURS		3,271.00				3,100.00				171.00				8,013.00				7,250.00				763.00

				BUSINESS EXPO		18,822.00				19,000.00				(178.00)				40,877.00				46,000.00				(5,123.00)

				COMMUNITY PROGRAMS		- 0				- 0				- 0				30.00				- 0				30.00

				SMALL BUSINESS SEMINARS		8,930.00				2,700.00				6,230.00				15,810.00				14,175.00				1,635.00

				MISCELLANEOUS PROGRAMS		- 0				200.00				(200.00)				- 0				1,000.00				(1,000.00)

				NEWSLETTER		6,231.00				6,800.00				(569.00)				23,648.00				21,800.00				1,848.00

				WEB PAGE ADVERTISING		(450.00)				700.00				(1,150.00)				- 0				3,600.00				(3,600.00)

				MEMBERSHIP DIRECTORY		75.00				- 0				75.00				183.36				- 0				183.36

				MEMBER 2 MEMBER REVENUE		438.75				- 0				438.75				3,266.25				3,400.00				(133.75)

				MAP REVENUE		- 0				2,000.00				(2,000.00)				2,000.00				2,000.00				- 0

				MISCELLANEOUS PUBLICATIONS		60.00				- 0				60.00				390.00				- 0				390.00

				ROYALTY REVENUE		8,876.77				9,000.00				(123.23)				50,275.97				52,000.00				(1,724.03)

				WATERFEST CONCESSIONS REVENUE		- 0				- 0				- 0				40.00				- 0				40.00

				HOLIDAY PARADE REVENUE		- 0				- 0				- 0				14,200.00				16,000.00				(1,800.00)

		TOTAL PROGRAM REVENUE				51,079.52				50,500.00				579.52				179,108.58				189,725.00				(10,616.42)

		PROGRAM EXPENSE:

				ADVERTISING		- 0				500.00				(500.00)				- 0				1,000.00				(1,000.00)

				AMBASSADOR		- 0				- 0				- 0				47.27				- 0				47.27

				ANNUAL MEETING		3,617.38				12,100.00				(8,482.62)				4,608.72				13,500.00				(8,891.28)

				GOLF OUTING		- 0				- 0				- 0				400.00				- 0				400.00

				BUSINESS AFTER HOURS		- 0				- 0				- 0				31.50				1,300.00				(1,268.50)

				BUSINESS EXPO		5,479.03				8,200.00				(2,720.97)				6,109.23				10,400.00				(4,290.77)

				GIFT CERTIFICATE EXPENSE		1,381.80				- 0				1,381.80				4,184.88				3,500.00				684.88

				GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS EXPENSES		- 0				3,850.00				(3,850.00)				1,100.55				9,300.00				(8,199.45)

				INTERNATIOAL TRADE		- 0				- 0				- 0				4,824.00				4,822.50				1.50

				COMMUNITY PROGRAMS		100.00				- 0				100.00				916.10				- 0				916.10

				ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT		12,270.23				9,333.33				2,936.90				49,371.05				48,666.65				704.40

				SMALL BUSINESS SEMINARS		10,827.04				9,100.00				1,727.04				11,968.20				11,950.00				18.20

				MISCELLANEOUS PROGRAMS		- 0				- 0				- 0				38.08				- 0				38.08

				NEWSLETTER		3,694.07				520.00				3,174.07				12,683.66				9,550.00				3,133.66

				WEB PAGE EXPENSE		42.50				- 0				42.50				131.75				- 0				131.75

				WATERFEST CONCESSIONS EXPENSE		- 0				- 0				- 0				(210.00)				- 0				(210.00)

				HOLIDAY PARADE EXPENSE		- 0				- 0				- 0				9,286.39				8,500.00				786.39

				MISCELLANEOUS PUBLICATIONS		- 0				- 0				- 0				1,241.10				1,850.00				(608.90)

		TOTAL PROGRAM EXPENSE				37,412.05				43,603.33				(6,191.28)				106,732.48				124,339.15				(17,606.67)

		PROGRAM INCOME (LOSS)				$   13,667.47				$   6,896.67				$   6,770.80				$   72,376.10				$   65,385.85				$   6,990.25





mark
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Balance Sheet

		OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

		STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

		AS OF 3/31/2009

		ASSETS:

				CASH

						PETTY CASH		184.96

						CHECKING-GENERAL ACCOUNT		27,204.61

						TEMPORARY INVESTMENT ACCOUNT		127,570.86

						CAPITAL INVESTMENT ACCOUNT		279,346.11

						WATERFEST CONCESSIONS CASH		44.38

						TOTAL CASH		434,350.92

				OTHER ASSETS

						GIFT CERTIFICATE CASH		131,516.48

						ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE-DUES		36,598.33

						ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS		(3,000.00)

						ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE-OTHER		24,796.99

						ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE-OCCF		3,698.36

						ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE-OAEDC		13,283.12

						Accounts Receivable - Propel		37.38

						DUE FROM WATERFEST INC		1,065.34

						PREPAID INSURANCE		3,447.48

						PREPAID EXPENSE		25,125.00

						LAND		18,755.75

						BUILDING		591,548.53

						ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION-BUILDING		(360,800.24)

						FURNITURE, FIXTURES & EQUIPMENT		221,882.70

						ACCUM DEPRECIATION-FURNITURE, FIXTURES & EQUIPMENT		(180,538.88)

						TOTAL OTHER ASSETS		527,416.34

						TOTAL ASSETS		$   961,767.26

		LIABILITIES:

						ACCOUNTS PAYABLE		29,028.17

						OTHER CONTRIBUTIONS		8,988.45

						GIFT CERTIFICATES PAYABLE		131,516.48

						CAFETERIA PLAN CLAIMS PAYABLE (FLEX)		(3,411.11)

						401K CONTRIBUTION PAYABLE		947.74

						DUE TO GIFT CERT PROGRAM		550.00

						DUE TO OSHKOSH SAFETY COUNCIL		240.00

						ACCRUED FEDERAL AND FICA W/H		2,960.76

						ACCRUED WISCONSIN W/H		2,187.08

						UNITED FUND PAYROLL W/H		944.00

						ACCRUED PROPERTY TAX		8,202.21

						ADVANCED DEPOSITS RECEIVED		1,020.00

						DEFERRED INCOME-DUES		192,210.20

						SPORTS COMPLEX CONTRIBUTION PAYABLE		26,006.60

						TOTAL LIABILITIES		401,390.58

		EQUITY:

						RETAINED EARNINGS		579,246.53

						NET INCOME (Y-T-D)		(18,869.85)

						ENDING RETAINED EARNINGS		560,376.68

						TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY		$   961,767.26





Revenues & Expenses

		OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

		STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

		FOR THE MONTH ENDED 3/31/2009

						CURRENT				CURRENT				CURRENT				Y-T-D				Y-T-D				Y-T-D

						ACTUAL				BUDGET				VARIANCE				ACTUAL				BUDGET				VARIANCE

		REVENUE:

				MEMBERSHIP REVENUE		41,048.58				36,544.67				4,503.91				213,915.93				219,268.02				(5,352.09)

				PROGRAM REVENUE		12,815.54				13,400.00				(584.46)				191,924.12				203,125.00				(11,200.88)

				INTEREST REVENUE		1,106.95				1,250.00				(143.05)				6,678.99				7,500.00				(821.01)

				CONTRACTED SERVICES REVENUE		1,518.68				1,346.00				172.68				9,112.08				8,071.00				1,041.08

				MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE		160.00				333.33				(173.33)				1,413.20				1,999.98				(586.78)

		TOTAL REVENUE				56,649.75				52,874.00				3,775.75				423,044.32				439,964.00				(16,919.68)

		EXPENSES:

				SALARIES AND BENEFITS		35,157.90				38,390.33				(3,232.43)				215,201.46				224,166.90				(8,965.44)

				OPERATING AND BUILDING		14,445.84				16,994.17				(2,548.33)				84,609.09				96,160.02				(11,550.93)

				PROGRAM EXPENSE		18,844.87				20,428.33				(1,583.46)				125,278.10				138,767.48				(13,489.38)

				MEMBERSHIP NONRENEWALS		2,461.00				2,500.00				(39.00)				13,144.25				15,000.00				(1,855.75)

				MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE		600.98				666.66				(65.68)				3,581.27				3,999.96				(418.69)

				CONTRIBUTIONS		- 0				- 0				- 0				100.00				- 0				100.00

		TOTAL EXPENSE				71,510.59				78,979.49				(7,468.90)				441,914.17				478,094.36				(36,180.19)

		NET INCOME				$   (14,860.84)				$   (26,105.49)				$   11,244.65				$   (18,869.85)				$   (38,130.36)				$   19,260.51





Expense Schedule

		OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

		SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE-EXPENSE

		FOR THE MONTH ENDED 3/31/2009

						CURRENT				CURRENT				CURRENT				Y-T-D				Y-T-D				Y-T-D

						ACTUAL				BUDGET				VARIANCE				ACTUAL				BUDGET				VARIANCE

		SALARIES AND BENEFITS:

				SALARIES		29,677.78				29,721.08				(43.30)				178,236.15				178,326.48				(90.33)

				TEMPORARY WAGES		- 0				500.00				(500.00)				458.01				1,000.00				(541.99)

				COMMISSION EXPENSE		275.00				250.00				25.00				407.50				750.00				(342.50)

				SOCIAL SECURITY TAX		741.69				2,299.17				(1,557.48)				10,821.41				13,794.98				(2,973.57)

				FEDERAL UNEMPLOYMENT TAX		- 0				200.00				(200.00)				- 0				600.00				(600.00)

				WI UNEMPLOYMENT TAX		- 0				100.00				(100.00)				- 0				300.00				(300.00)

				HEALTH, DENTAL & LIFE INS.		2,652.92				2,470.17				182.75				14,804.31				14,820.98				(16.67)

				HRA EXPENSES		186.07				1,000.00				(813.93)				1,072.95				3,150.00				(2,077.05)

				CAFETERIA PLAN EXPENSES		- 0				50.00				(50.00)				- 0				300.00				(300.00)

				DISABILITY INSURANCE		201.06				187.08				13.98				1,206.36				1,122.48				83.88

				WORKERS COMPENSATION		- 0				205.50				(205.50)				475.00				1,233.00				(758.00)

				PENSION CONTRIBUTION		1,423.38				1,407.33				16.05				7,719.77				8,443.98				(724.21)

				PENSION EXPENSE		- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				325.00				(325.00)

				TOTAL SALARIES AND BENEIFTS		35,157.90				38,390.33				(3,232.43)				215,201.46				224,166.90				(8,965.44)

		OPERATING AND BUILDING:

				OFFICE SUPPLIES		1,917.10				708.33				1,208.77				4,342.61				4,249.98				92.63

				TELEPHONE		363.33				458.33				(95.00)				1,708.64				2,749.98				(1,041.34)

				POSTAGE		628.25				416.67				211.58				1,525.73				2,500.02				(974.29)

				MEMBERSHIP EXPENSE		169.56				565.00				(395.44)				1,528.70				3,785.00				(2,256.30)

				MEMBERSHIP COMMISSION EXPENSE		357.50				- 0				357.50				701.88				- 0				701.88

				PRINTING		337.89				375.00				(37.11)				1,018.29				2,250.00				(1,231.71)

				DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS		415.62				916.67				(501.05)				6,072.71				5,500.02				572.69

				UTILITIES		994.00				991.67				2.33				6,488.80				5,950.02				538.78

				BUILDING REPAIR & MAIN.		1,924.00				1,250.00				674.00				13,571.52				7,500.00				6,071.52

				BUILDING INSURANCE		250.17				283.33				(33.16)				1,501.02				1,699.98				(198.96)

				EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAIN.		193.15				166.67				26.48				1,480.87				1,000.02				480.85

				EQUIPMENT EXPENSE		- 0				166.67				(166.67)				1,216.52				1,000.02				216.50

				COMPUTER ADMINISTRATION		1,063.65				408.33				655.32				2,364.73				2,449.98				(85.25)

				INSURANCE EXPENSE		102.50				120.83				(18.33)				990.00				724.98				265.02

				MARKETING / PUBLIC RELATIONS		- 0				5,000.00				(5,000.00)				735.00				19,400.00				(18,665.00)

				MEETINGS		96.62				250.00				(153.38)				2,742.25				1,500.00				1,242.25

				EDUCATION & CONFERENCES		- 0				500.00				(500.00)				1,548.28				3,000.00				(1,451.72)

				BOARD & STRATEGIC PLANNING		- 0				166.67				(166.67)				182.46				1,000.02				(817.56)

				TRAVEL EXPENSE		951.38				500.00				451.38				4,061.51				3,000.00				1,061.51

				LEGAL & PROFESSIONAL		1,328.63				500.00				828.63				10,712.63				5,900.00				4,812.63

				PROPERTY TAX EXPENSE		885.00				916.67				(31.67)				5,310.00				5,500.02				(190.02)

				FEDERAL INCOME TAX		- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				1,000.00				(1,000.00)

				STATE INCOME TAX		- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				500.00				(500.00)

				DEPRECIATION EXPENSE		2,467.49				2,333.33				134.16				14,804.94				13,999.98				804.96

				TOTAL OPERATING AND BUILDING		14,445.84				16,994.17				(2,548.33)				84,609.09				96,160.02				(11,550.93)

		OTHER EXPENSES:

				CREDIT CARD PROCESSING FEES		588.24				333.33				254.91				2,423.86				1,999.98				423.88

				MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE		12.74				333.33				(320.59)				1,157.41				1,999.98				(842.57)

				BAD DEBT EXPENSE		2,461.00				2,500.00				(39.00)				13,144.25				15,000.00				(1,855.75)

				CONTRIBUTIONS		- 0				- 0				- 0				100.00				- 0				100.00

				TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES		3,061.98				3,166.66				(104.68)				16,825.52				18,999.96				(2,174.44)

		TOTAL EXPENSES				$   52,665.72				$   58,551.16				$   (5,885.44)				$   316,636.07				$   339,326.88				$   (22,690.81)





Programs Schedule

		OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

		SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE-PROGRAMS

		FOR THE MONTH ENDED 3/31/2009

						CURRENT				CURRENT				CURRENT				Y-T-D				Y-T-D				Y-T-D

						ACTUAL				BUDGET				VARIANCE				ACTUAL				BUDGET				VARIANCE

		PROGRAM REVENUE:

				ANNUAL MEETING		(100.00)				- 0				(100.00)				20,275.00				22,500.00				(2,225.00)

				BUSINESS AFTER HOURS		496.00				900.00				(404.00)				8,509.00				8,150.00				359.00

				BUSINESS EXPO		350.00				- 0				350.00				41,227.00				46,000.00				(4,773.00)

				COMMUNITY PROGRAMS		- 0				- 0				- 0				30.00				- 0				30.00

				SMALL BUSINESS SEMINARS		65.00				- 0				65.00				15,875.00				14,175.00				1,700.00

				MISCELLANEOUS PROGRAMS		- 0				100.00				(100.00)				- 0				1,100.00				(1,100.00)

				NEWSLETTER		649.00				700.00				(51.00)				24,297.00				22,500.00				1,797.00

				WEB PAGE ADVERTISING		475.00				700.00				(225.00)				475.00				4,300.00				(3,825.00)

				MEMBERSHIP DIRECTORY		35.00				- 0				35.00				218.36				- 0				218.36

				MEMBER 2 MEMBER REVENUE		528.75				- 0				528.75				3,795.00				3,400.00				395.00

				MAP REVENUE		- 0				- 0				- 0				2,000.00				2,000.00				- 0

				MISCELLANEOUS PUBLICATIONS		- 0				- 0				- 0				390.00				- 0				390.00

				ROYALTY REVENUE		10,316.79				11,000.00				(683.21)				60,592.76				63,000.00				(2,407.24)

				WATERFEST CONCESSIONS REVENUE		- 0				- 0				- 0				40.00				- 0				40.00

				HOLIDAY PARADE REVENUE		- 0				- 0				- 0				14,200.00				16,000.00				(1,800.00)

		TOTAL PROGRAM REVENUE				12,815.54				13,400.00				(584.46)				191,924.12				203,125.00				(11,200.88)

		OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

		SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE-PROGRAMS

		FOR THE MONTH ENDED 3/31/2009

						CURRENT				CURRENT				CURRENT				Y-T-D				Y-T-D				Y-T-D

						ACTUAL				BUDGET				VARIANCE				ACTUAL				BUDGET				VARIANCE

		PROGRAM EXPENSE:

				ADVERTISING		- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				1,000.00				(1,000.00)

				AMBASSADOR		11.82				- 0				11.82				59.09				- 0				59.09

				ANNUAL MEETING		5,063.55				- 0				5,063.55				9,672.27				13,500.00				(3,827.73)

				GOLF OUTING		- 0				- 0				- 0				400.00				- 0				400.00

				BUSINESS AFTER HOURS		- 0				50.00				(50.00)				31.50				1,350.00				(1,318.50)

				BUSINESS EXPO		- 0				- 0				- 0				6,109.23				10,400.00				(4,290.77)

				CONCERTS IN THE PARK / EXTRAVAGANZA		33.60				- 0				33.60				33.60				- 0				33.60

				GIFT CERTIFICATE EXPENSE		- 0				1,750.00				(1,750.00)				4,184.88				5,250.00				(1,065.12)

				GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS EXPENSES		- 0				2,800.00				(2,800.00)				1,100.55				6,100.00				(4,999.45)

				INTERNATIOAL TRADE		2,412.00				- 0				2,412.00				7,236.00				4,822.50				2,413.50

				COMMUNITY PROGRAMS		- 0				- 0				- 0				616.85				- 0				616.85

				ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT		8,831.02				11,833.33				(3,002.31)				58,202.07				60,499.98				(2,297.91)

				SMALL BUSINESS SEMINARS		811.00				- 0				811.00				12,779.20				11,950.00				829.20

				MISCELLANEOUS PROGRAMS		- 0				- 0				- 0				38.08				- 0				38.08

				NEWSLETTER		381.88				3,995.00				(3,613.12)				13,065.54				13,545.00				(479.46)

				WEB PAGE EXPENSE		1,300.00				- 0				1,300.00				1,431.75				- 0				1,431.75

				WATERFEST CONCESSIONS EXPENSE		- 0				- 0				- 0				(210.00)				- 0				(210.00)

				HOLIDAY PARADE EXPENSE		- 0				- 0				- 0				9,286.39				8,500.00				786.39

				MISCELLANEOUS PUBLICATIONS		- 0				- 0				- 0				1,241.10				1,850.00				(608.90)

		TOTAL PROGRAM EXPENSE				18,844.87				20,428.33				(1,583.46)				125,278.10				138,767.48				(13,489.38)

		PROGRAM INCOME (LOSS)				$   (6,029.33)				$   (7,028.33)				$   999.00				$   66,646.02				$   64,357.52				$   2,288.50
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Business Solutio"s
BETTER PEOPLE. BETTER RESULTS.


INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT


To the Board of Directors
Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce and Affliates
Oshkosh, Wisconsin


We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of Oshkosh Chamber of
Commerce and Affliates as of September 30, 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of
activities and net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial
statements are the responsibilty of the Organizations' management. Our responsibilty is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.


We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.


In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce and Affilates as of September 30,
2008 and 2007, and the changes in its net assets and cash flows for the years then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.


A~ xde-
Certified Public Accountants


Oshkosh, Wisconsin
November 13, 2008


1488 W. South Park Avenue. P.O. Box 2543 . Oshkosh, Wi 54903 . schencksolutions.com
Phone: 920-235-0590 . 800-851-0974 . Fax: 920-235-0596
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OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE AND AFFILIATES


CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
September 30,2008 and 2007


Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce


Oshkosh
Operating Safety West Side Oshkosh Gift


ASSETS Fund Council Association Arts Certificates


Current assets


Cash and cash equivalents $ 507,303 $ 18,390 $ 4,913 $ 847 $ 137,360
Members' assessments receivable, less


allowance for doubtful members'
assessments of $3,000 20,675


Accounts receivable - program revenue 5,861 1,980


Due from OCC
Due from OAEDC 27,825
Due from Propel 172
Interest receivable
Prepaid expenses 5.374


Total current assets 567,210 20,370 4,913 847 137,360


Investments


Net oropert and eauioment


Other assets


Notes receivable


$ 567210 $ 20 370 $ 4913 $ 847 $ 137360


LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS


Current liabilties
Accounts payable $ 43,439 $ $ $ $
Due to OCC
Due to OCCF 3,107
Contributions payable - current 11,752 1,189


Gift certificates payable 137,360
Accrued liabilties 14,466
Deferred members' assessments 183,747 3,093


Advance deposits 7,400
Unearned revenue - Leadership Oshkosh
Unearned revenue - School to Work


Total current liabilties 263,911 3,093 1,189 137,360


Lona-term liabilties
Contributions payable - long-term 26.007


Total liabilties 289.918 3.093 1.189 137.360


Net assets
Unrestricted 277,292 17,277 3,724 847


Temporarily restricted


Total net assets 277292 17.277 3.724 847


$ 567210 $ 20 370 $ 4913 $ 847 $ 137 360


See notes to consolidated financial statements.







Totals
Oshkosh Oshkosh
Chamber Area Economic


Plant of Commerce Development
Fund Prooel Foundation Corooration Eliminations 2008 2007


$ $ 13,871 $ 105,336 $ 84,647 $ $ 872,667 $ 868,861


20,675 45,135
28,000 25,193 61,034 60,782


3,107 (3,107)
(27,825)


500 (672)
1,154 1,154 1,247


5.374 2.772


13,871 136,943 110,994 (31,604) 960,904 978,797


13,365 13,365


301,956 301,956 290,782


104.972 104.972 137.549


$ 301 956 $ 13871 $ 150 308 $ 215966 $ 131 604) $ 1 381 197 $ 1 407128


$ $ 45 $ 5,724 $ $ $ 49,208 $ 44,157
172 27,825 (27,997)
500 (3,607)


85 13,026 5,169
137,360 159,462


14,466 17,202
2,294 189,134 191,833


7,400 11,920
38,580 38,580 41,556
32.732 32.732 37.803


3,011 77,121 27,825 (31,604) 481,906 509,102


26.007 4.068


3.011 77121 27.825 (31.604) 507.913 513.170


301,956 10,860 59,822 188,141 859,919 878,221
13.365 13.365 15.737


301.956 10.860 73.187 188.141 873.284 893.958


$ 301 956 $ 13871 $ 150 308 $ 215966 $ 131 604) $ 1 381 197 $ 1 407128
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OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE AND AFFILIATES


CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND NET ASSETS
Years Ended September 30,2008 and 2007


Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce


Oshkosh
Operating Safety West Side Oshkosh Gift


Fund Council Association Arts Certifcates


UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS
Revenues


Members' assessments $ 401,905 $ 3,680 $ 7,950 $ $


Contracted services revenue 17,224


Program revenue 712,840 2,145 9,409


Grant revenue
Contributions
Sponsorship revenue 350


Interest income 16,300 93


Miscellaneous 3.090


Total revenues 1.151.359 5.918 17.709


. Exoenses
Salaries and benefis 426,995
Offce operating expenses 100,076
Program expenses 565,212 4,298 13,928 230


Building and occupancy expenses 49,793
Depreciation
Income taxes


Total expenses 1.142.D6 4.298 13.928 230


Change in unrestricted net assets 9.283 1.620 3.781 (230)


TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS


Contributions and grants
Interest and dividends
Net realized and unrealized loss on investments
Net assets released from restrictions


Change in temporarily restricted net assets


Change in net assets 9,283 1,620 3,781 (230)


Net assets
Beginning of year 314,161 15,657 (57) 1,077


Transfer from Operating Fund to Plant Fund (46.152)


End of year $ 277 292 $ 17 277 $ 3724 $ 847 $


See notes to consolidated financial statements.







Totals


Plant
Fund Prooel


Oshkosh
Chamber


of Commerce
Foundation


Oshkosh
Area Economic
Development
Corooration Eliminations 2008 2007


$ $ 5,277 $ $ $ $ 418,812 $ 412,397


(17,224)
5,718 46,880 133,697 (100,000) 810,689 888,758


26,700 20,449 47,149 33,125
67,300 21,022 88,322 56,731
14,550 14,900 1,500


70 7,211 23,674 27,715
3.090 4.174


11.065 155.430 182.379 (117.224) 1.406.636 1.424.400


147,156 (17,224) 556,927 540,249
26,362 126,438 107,377


12,380 156,827 3,926 (100,000) 656,801 618,083
49,793 40,336


34,978 34,978 30,556
891


34.978 12.380 156.827 17744 (117.224) 1.424.937 1.337.492


(34.978) (1.315) ( 1.397) 4.935 (18.301 ) 86.908


177 177 4,035
357 357


(2,907) (2,907)
(1.200)


(2.373) (2.373) 2.835


(34,978) (1,315) (3,770) 4,935 (20,674) 89,743


290,782 12,175 76,957 183,206 893,958 804,215
46.152


$ 301.956 $ 1 0.860 $ 73.187 $ 188.141 $ $ 873 284 $ 893 958


3







OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE AND AFFILIATES


CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended September 30,2008 and 2007


Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce


Oshkosh
Operating Safety West Side Oshkosh Gift


Fund Council Association Arts Certificates


Operatina activities
Change in net assets $ 9,283 $ 1,620 $ 3,781 $ (230) $
Adjustments to reconcile change in


net assets to cash provided by


(used for) operating activities:
Net realized and unrealized loss


on investments
Depreciation
Interfund transfers (46,152)
(Increase) decrease in:


Receivables 26,095 (160) 700
Interest receivable
Prepaid expenses (2,602)


Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable 9,107
Other current liabilties (10,089) 640 (22,102)
Contributions payable 32.116 (2.320)


Net cash provided by (used for)
operating activities 17.758 2.100 2.161 (230) (22.102)


Investina activities
Purchases of propert and equipment


Repayment of notes receivable
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sale of investments
Issuance of notes receivable


Net cash provided by (used for)
investing activities


Cash and cash eauivalents
Net increase (decrease) 17,758 2,100 2,161 (230 ) (22,102)
Reclassification of cash to investments
Beginning of year 489.545 16.290 2.752 1.077 159.462


End of year $ 507 303 $ 18390 $ 4913 $ 847 $ 137 360


See notes to consolidated financial statements.







Totals


Oshkosh Oshkosh
Chamber Area Economic


Plant of Commerce Development
Fund Propel Foundation Corporation Eliminations 2008 2007


$ (34,978) $ (1,315) $ (3,770) $ 4,935 $ $ (20,674) $ 89,743


2,907 2,907
34,978 34,978 30,556
46,152


50 (6,207) (20,669) 24,399 24,208 (49,069)
93 93 (243)


(2,602) 9,042


590 (2,729) 22,482 (24,399) 5,051 210


(506) (8,047) (40,104) 68,644
29.796 (5.019)


46.152 (1.181) (17.846) 6.841 33.653 143.864


(46,152) (46,152) (21,570)
32,577 32,577 6,951


(3,491 ) (3,491 )
2,956 2,956


(47.500)


(46.152) (535) 32.577 (14.110) (62.119)


(1,181) (18,381) 39,418 19,543 81,745


(15,737) (15,737)
15.052 139.454 45.229 868.861 787.116


$ $ 13871 $ 105.336 $ 84 647 $ $ 872 667 $ 868 861
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OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE AND AFFILIATES


NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30,2008 and 2007


Note 1 - Summary of significant accounting policies


A. Nature of activities


Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce and Affilates (Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce Foundation and
Oshkosh Area Economic Development Corporation) are not-for-profit Wisconsin organizations
organized under Section 501 (c)(6) (Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce) and Section 501 (c)(3)
(Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce Foundation) and Section 501 (c)(4) (Oshkosh Area Economic
Development Corporation) of the Internal Revenue Code. The tax exempt status is based on the
stated purpose of the operations and supporting evidence presented to the Internal Revenue
Service with the application for tax-exempt status. Such status is subject to re-evaluation should
there be any changes in operation, character, or purpose of the Organizations.


The Organizations are engaged in providing leadership, service and representation to its members so
their businesses and the community wil prosper. Services provided to their members include but are
not limited to business expansion, downtown development, economic development, governmental
affairs, environmental quality, cultural resources, international trade, career/vocational training,
education, leadership training, employee benefit programs, health care, networking programs, and
small business assistance and counseling.


The Organizations' primary sources of revenue are program revenue and membership dues.


B. Basis of presentation


The Organizations are required to report information regarding their activities according to three
classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently
restricted net assets.


Unrestricted net assets: net assets that are neither temporarily nor permanently restricted by
donor-imposed stipulations.


Temporarily restricted net assets: net assets that result from contributions whose use by the
Organizations is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that either expire by passage of time or can
be fulfilled and removed by actions of the Organizations pursuant to those stipulations.


Permanently restricted net assets: net assets resulting from contributions whose use by the
Organizations is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that neither expire by passage of time nor
can be fulfilled and removed by actions of the Organizations.


The Organizations had no permanently restricted net assets as of September 30,2008 and 2007.


C. Consolidated financial statements


The financial statements include the accounts of Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce (OCC), Oshkosh
Chamber of Commerce Foundation (OCCF), and Oshkosh Area Economic Development Corporation
(OAEDC). OCC has both an economic interest in OCCF and control of OCCF through a majority voting
interest in its governing board. OCC is related to OAEDC through various board members and
administrative staff. All significant inter-organizational transactions and accounts have been eliminated.
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OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE AND AFFIUA TES


NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
September 30, 2008 and 2007


Note 1 - Summary of significant accounting policies, continued


D. Estimates


The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.


E. Cash and cash equivalents


The Organizations consider all highly liquid investments available for current use with a maturity of three
months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.


The Organizations maintain their cash balances at various financial institutions located in Oshkosh,
Wisconsin, which at times may exceed federally insured limits. The Organizations have not experienced
any losses in such amounts and believe they are not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash balances.


A portion of the cash and cash equivalents are invested in certificates of deposit with staggering maturities.


F. Propert and eauioment


All acquisitions and improvements of propert and equipment in excess of $1 ,000 are capitalized while all
expenditures for repairs and maintenance that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
expensed. Purchased propert and equipment are carried at cost. Donated propert and equipment
are carried at the approximate fair value at the date of donation.


Depreciation for financial reporting purposes is provided over the following estimated useful lives of the
respective assets, using the straight-line method:


Buildings and improvements
Fumiture and equipment


7 - 50 years
3 -10 years


G. Members' assessments receivable


The allowance for doubtful members' assessments receivable is based on historical bad debt experience
and an evaluation of aging of the accounts. Receivables are written off in full against the allowance when
the unpaid balance is considered uncollectible.


H. Investments


OCCF carries investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and all
investments in debt securities at their fair values in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Quoted market prices in active markets are used as the basis for measurement. Unrealized gains and
losses are included in the change in net assets in the accompanying statement of activities.


Investment income and gains restricted by donors are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets
if the restrictions are met (either a stipulated time period ends or a purpose restriction is accomplished)
in the reporting period in which the income and gains are recognized.
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OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE AND AFFILIATES


NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
September 30, 2008 and 2007


Note 1 - Summary of significant accounting policies, continued


i. Contribution recognition


Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted
support, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions.


All donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets,
depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified
to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from
restrictions. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same time period in which the contribution is
received, the Organization reports the support as unrestricted.


J. Advertising costs


OCC and OAEDC expense advertising costs as they are incurred. Advertising expenses amounted to
approximately $14,712 and $7,336 for the years ended September 30,2008 and 2007, respectively.


K. Reclassifications


Certain amounts in the 2007 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2008
presentation. Such classifications had no effect on reported change in net assets.


Note 2 - Cash


The Board of Directors of OCC and OAEDC have segregated cash for the following uses:


2008


$ 597,637
196,333
78.697


$ 872.667


Operations
Capital investment
Revolving loan fund (OAEDC)


Total cash


2007


$ 625,481
207,507
35.873


$ 868.861


The capital investment is intended to be funded with an amount equal to the depreciation expense recorded
annually.
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OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE AND AFFILIATES


NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
September 30,2008 and 2007


Note 3 - Propert and equipment


Propert and equipment consist of the following at September 30, 2008 and 2007:


2008


$ 591,549
18,756


218.185


828,490


526.534


$ 301.956


Building and improvements
Land
Fumiture and equipment


2007


$ 575,061
18,694


200.599


794,354


503.572


$ 290,782


Total, at cost


Less accumulated depreciation


Net propert and equipment


Note 4 - Contributions payable


Included in contributions payable are the following unconditional promises to give:


2008 2007


Amounts due in less than one year $ 14,335 $ 5,585
Amounts due in one to five year 28.000 4.250


Total pledges 42,335 9,835


Less unamortized discount 3.302 598


Net unconditional promise to give $ 39.033 $ 9.237


Interest was imputed at a rate of 2.98% to 5.01 % in discounting long-term promises to give for the years
ended September 30,2008 and 2007.


Note 5 - Accrued liabilties


Accrued liabilties consist of the following at September 30, 2008 and 2007:


Accrued personal propert and real estate taxes
Payroll withholdings


Total accrued liabilties


2008


$ 8,796
5.670


$ 14,466


2007


$ 8,626
8.576


$ 17.202


Note 6 - Profit sharing plan


OCC has a 401 (k) profit sharing plan covering substantially all full-time employees who have completed at
least one year of service. The Organization contributes on behalf of each of the employees who are eligible
to participate in the plan, an amount equal to 5% of the salary paid for that plan year.


The Organization contributed $21,196 and $19,447 for the years ended September 30,2008 and 2007,
respectively.
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OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE AND AFFILIATES


NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
September 30, 2008 and 2007


Note 7 - Leases


OCC had a lease with the city of Oshkosh for the land on which OCC's facilties are built. Total amounts
incurred for the land lease was $2,085 and $2,035 for the years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. On September 22, 2008, OCC purchased the land from the City of Oshkosh.


The lease agreement required payment of the annual real estate taxes which would be assessed on the
structures constructed on the land. The amount of real estate taxes were $9,256 and $9,033 for the years
ended September 30, 2008 'and 2007, respectively.


Total amounts incurred were $11,341 and $11,068 for the years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007,
respectively.


Note 8 - Functional classification of expenses


Expenses by function for the years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:


2008 2007
Expenses


Program services
Membership services


Supporting services
Management and general
Fund raising


Total expenses


$ 1 ,043,095


375,814
6.028


$ 1.424.937


$ 983,177


348,458
5.857


$ 1.337.492


Note 9 - Waterfest


OCC has an agreement with Waterfest, Inc. to operate the concessions at the Waterfest "Concerts in the
Park" series usually conducted on Thursday nights in the summer. The agreement calls for OCC to pay a
commission to Waterfest, Inc. based on the amount of concessions sold. Revenues collected were $314,365
and $367,855 and total expenses were $305,090 and $352,284 for the years ended September 30,2008 and
2007, respectively.


Gate revenue and expenses are reported by Waterfest, Inc. and not included in the totals for the years ended
September 30,2008 and 2007.


Note 10 - Contingencies


OCC has a conditional promise to give with the University of Wisconsin Oshkosh Foundation, Inc. to the UW-
Oshkosh Academic Building Campaign of $50,000. The first payment of this promise wil commence after
the final installment on the pledge to the UW-Oshkosh Sports Complex Project and is due in annual
installments from 2015 through 2019.
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Business Solutions
BETTER PEOPLE. BETTER RESULTS.


INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION


To the Board of Directors
Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce and Affliates
Oshkosh, Wisconsin


Our report on our audits of the basic financial statements of Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce and
Affliates for the years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 appears on Page 1. Our audits were
made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
following schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and we do not express an opinion or any other
form of assurance on such data.


~~ ~C-
Certified Public Accountants


Oshkosh, Wisconsin
November 13, 2008


1488 W. South Park Avenue " P.O. Box 2543 . Oshkosh, Wi 54903 . schencksolutions.com
Phone: 920-235-0590 " 800"851-0974 . Fax: 920-235-0596


Schenc" sc







OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE AND AFFILIATES


SCHEDULE OF OCC OPERATING FUND REVENUE COMPARED WITH BUDGET
Year Ended September 30,2008


Variance
Favorable


Actual Budget (Unfavorable)


Revenue
Members' assessments $ 381,357 $ 367,699 $ 13,658
New members 20,548 21,667 (1,119)
Contracted services revenue 17,224 44,455 (27,231 )
Program revenue 712,840 852,155 (139,315)
Interest income 16,300 12,500 3,800
Miscellaneous 3.090 4.000 (910)


$ 1.151.359 $ 1 302476 $ ( 151.117)
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OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE AND AFFILIATES


SCHEDULE OF OCC OPERATING FUND REVENUE COMPARED WITH BUDGET


Year Ended September 30,2007


Variance
Favorable


Actual Budaet (Unfavorable )


Revenue
Members' assessments $ 360,351 $ 374,974 $ (14,623)
New members 36,893 16,250 20,643
Contracted services revenue 16,148 12,918 3,230
Program revenue 752,251 827,865 (75,614)
Interest income 18,950 12,500 6,450
Miscellaneous 4.174 4.000 174


$ 1 188.767 $ 1.248.507 $ (59.740)
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OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE AND AFFILIATES


SCHEDULE OF OCC OPERATING FUND EXPENSES COMPARED WITH BUDGET
Year Ended September 30,2008


Variance
Favorable


Actual Budget (Unfavorable)


Salaries and benefits:
Salaries and wages $ 349,560 $ 354,333 $ 4,773
Social security tax 25,312 27,106 1,794
Federal unemployment 616 710 94
State unemployment 289 300 11


Health and dental insurance 31,136 33,197 2,061
Disabilty insurance 1,957 1,807 (150)
Workers compensation 2,349 2,246 (103)
Profit sharing 15.776 16.214 438


426.995 435.913 8.918


Offce operating expenses:
Offce supplies 12,533 8,825 (3,708)
Advertising 6,963 14,000 7,037
Equipment repair 2,601 2,000 (601 )
Equipment 2,202 2,000 (202)
Travel expense 5,497 7,800 2,303
Training, conferences and meetings 11 ,779 12,000 221
Insurance 1,575 1,450 (125)
Legal and professional 11,872 11,000 (872)
Computer expense 5,900 4,900 (1,000)
Dues and subscriptions 12,709 9,700 (3,009)
Postage 4,459 5,100 641
Telephone 4,911 7,000 2,089
Printing 2,538 4,500 1,962
Membership 10,843 11 ,250 407
Miscellaneous 3.694 4.500 806


100.076 106.025 5.949


Building and occupancy expenses:
Building repair and maintenance 22,386 15,000 (7,386)
Building insurance 3,122 3,400 278
Utilities 12,944 11,900 (1,044)
Rent and propert tax 11.341 11.000 (341 )


49.793 41.300 (8.493)


$ 576.864 $ 583 238 $ 6374
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OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE AND AFFILIATES


SCHEDULE OF OCC OPERATING FUND EXPENSES COMPARED WITH BUDGET
Year Ended September 30,2007


Variance
Favorable


Actual Budaet (U nfavorable)


Salaries and benefits:
Salaries and wages $ 345,515 $ 348,863 $ 3,348
Social security tax 24,663 26,688 2,025
Federal unemployment 563 710 147
State unemployment 421 300 (121)
Health and dental insurance 33,344 37,754 4,410
Disabilty insurance 1,738 1,730 (8)
Workers compensation 2,139 2,282 143
Profi sharing 15.334 15.200 (134)


423.717 433.527 9.810


Offce operating expenses:
Offce supplies 9,058 8,825 (233)
Advertising 1,903 (1,903)
Equipment repair 1,214 2,300 1,086
Equipment 1,826 1,800 (26)
Travel expense 5,727 6,000 273
Training, conferences and meetings 7,181 10,000 2,819
Insurance 1,636 1 ,450 (186)
Legal and professional 12,135 10,700 (1,435)
Computer expense 3,951 4,000 49
Dues and subscriptions 10,545 9,800 (745)
Postage 4,537 5,100 563
Telephone 5,939 6,660 721
Printing 4,451 4,250 (201 )
Membership 10,626 6,370 (4,256)
Miscellaneous 3.696 4.000 304


84.425 81.255 (3.170)


Building and occupancy expenses:
Building repair and maintenance 14,532 14,500 (32)
Building insurance 3,319 3,430 111
Utilities 11,273 11,150 (123)
Rent and propert tax 11.212 13.000 1.788


40.336 42.080 1.744


$ 548.478 $ 556.862 $ 8.384


15







OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE AND AFFILIATES


SCHEDULE OF OCC OPERATING FUND PROGRAM REVENUE AND EXPENSES


Year Ended September 30,2008


Excess


(Deficiency)
of Revenue


Program Program Over
Revenue Expenses Expenses


Ambassadors $ $ 516 $ (516)
Annual meeting 22,275 5,040 17,235
Community programs 38,736 (38,736)
Golf outing 58,288 29,435 28,853
Business Expo 42,163 6,786 35,377
Business After Hours 14,252 1,319 12,933
Small business seminars 13,485 11,519 1,966
Newsletter 43,314 27,219 16,095
Membership directory 20,530 70 20,460
Member 2 Member 4,095 4,095
Publications, Oshkosh facts,


manufacturers' directory 1,380 982 398
Economic development 97,454 (97,454)
International trade 10,000 (10,000)
Royalty revenue 122,245 122,245
Waterfest concessions 314,365 305,090 9,275
Concerts in the park 10,600 3,532 7,068
Holiday parade 15,050 8,811 6,239
Gift certificates 25,618 8,898 16,720
Human resource council 30 30
Governmental affairs 6,638 (6,638)
Miscellaneous 5.150 3.167 1.983


$ 712.840 $ 565.212 $ 147.628
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OSHKOSH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE AND AFFILIATES


SCHEDULE OF OCC OPERATING FUND PROGRAM REVENUE AND EXPENSES


Year Ended September 30,2007


Excess
(Deficiency)
of Revenue


Program Program Over
Revenue Expenses Exoenses


Ambassadors $ 100 $ $ 100
Annual meeting 22,675 19,118 3,557
Community programs 7,073 (7,073)
Golf outing 55,259 29,342 25,917
Business Expo 47,116 7,421 39,695
Business After Hours 13,559 1,923 11,636
Small business seminars 14,520 13,743 777
Newsletter 37,626 27,030 10,596
Membership directory 20,725 35 20,690
Member 2 Member 4,340 4,340
Publications, Oshkosh facts,


manufacturers' directory 280 788 (508)
Economic development 99,292 (99,292)
I nternational trade 12,825 (12,825)
Royalty revenue 116,232 116,232
Waterfest concessions 367,855 352,284 15,571
Concerts in the park 9,750 3,312 6,438
Community image campaign 10,119 (10,119)
Holiday parade 14,200 9,448 4,752
Gift certificates 21,614 10,617 10,997
Human resource council 470 1,043 (573)
Governmental affairs 1,201 (1,201)
Miscellaneous 5.930 2.220 3.710


$ 752.251 $ 608 834 $ 143.417
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File Attachment
A 2.5 Audit - 2008.pdf



D.  Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Regulations  
1. What is the chamber’s federal IRS identification number?       

 A 2.7 If the chamber has an IRS Letter of Exemption, please attach a copy. 
 Attachment :  

2. Does the chamber file an IRS Form 990 annually?  Yes   No 

3. If the chamber’s Unrelated Business Income grosses more than $1,000, do you file 
an IRS Form 990T? 

 Yes   No 

E.  State Income Tax 
1. Does the state require the chamber to file state income tax reports?  Yes   No 

 A 2.8 If yes, please attach a copy of the chamber’s most recent state income tax report. 
 Attachment :  

2. Is the chamber required to collect and transmit sales tax to the state?  Yes   No 

3. Please list the chamber’s state department of revenue identification number (If 
applicable).  

                           
      

4. Does the chamber have a state sales tax-exempt certificate?  Yes   No 

5. Is the chamber required to have a state occupational license?  Yes   No 

F.  Payroll Taxation 
1. Are taxes withheld from employee checks transmitted and reported to the IRS as 

well as to state and local governments on a timely basis? 
 Yes   No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 










mark
File Attachment
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File Attachment
A 2.8 OCC 2008 State Return.pdf



 

 

 

Attachment A 
 

Fill in the following for the last five years (round to the nearest dollar). 
Year                                   
Total income                              

 
Member income 

 
      

  
      

  
      

                 
      

  
      

 
Income other than dues: 

 
      

  
      

  
      

                   
      

                    
      

     Convention or tourist                                   
     Industrial development                                   
     Retail                                   
     Other                                   
     Special long-range funds  
     (show one year’s income          
     Only) 

 
                   
      

  
                 
      

  
                 
      

  
                   
           

  
                
      

     Tax or government funds                                   
     Foundation income                                   
     Subsidiary corporation                                   

Number of membership billing 
accounts 

 
      

  
      

  
      

                   
      

  
      

Number of new member 
accounts 

 
      

  
      

  
      

                  
      

  
      

Number of member accounts 
dropped or resigned 

 
      

  
      

  
      

                     
           

  
      

Percentage of income used for:  
 

  
 

  
 

    
 

     Administration                                   
     Operations                                   
     Programs                                   
Cash balance at end of fiscal 
year 

 
      

  
      

  
      

                     
      

  
      

 

 

      %
      %
      %

      %
      %
      %

      %
      %
      %

      %
      %
      %

      %
      %
      %

 
  

 
  

 
    

 

*The sum must equal 100%  
 

  
 

  
 

    
 

Dollar value of dropped or 
resigned accounts 

 
      

  
      

  
      

                    



  
 

Section 2. Finance Additional Criteria 

A.  Responsible Accounting 
1. Is the staff responsible for performing financial transactions separate from the staff 

that records financial transactions? 
 Yes   No 

2. Are the officers and staff that handle the chamber’s money bonded?  Yes   No 

3. Are the capabilities of financial personnel appropriately matched with the 
requirements of the financial position? 

 Yes   No 

4. Has the board been instructed on how to review financial statements?  Yes   No 

5. What other types of financial training, in addition to what is provided at the board orientation, does the 
chamber offer the board of directors? (Check all that apply) 

  Staff or peer coaching   Financial courses at local or state colleges or universities 

  Seminars or conferences  Other       

B.   Budget 
1. Do board members and officers participate in the budget planning process?  Yes   No 

2. Do the chamber staff and board monitor the budget on a monthly basis?  Yes   No 

3. Does the chamber forecast a budget longer than one year?  Yes   No 

4. Is the budget shared with all committee chairs, and do they understand their 
responsibility to perform against their particular part of the budget? 

 Yes   No 

5. Do volunteers understand they cannot expend funds or contract for the chamber 
without explicit authorization?  

 Yes   No 

C.  Financial Reporting 
1. How often are financial reports reviewed by the Executive Committee? 

  Monthly  Quarterly  Yearly  Not Applicable 

2. Does the board and/or executive committee review audited financial statements?  Yes   No 

3. Does the chamber have a reserve or contingency fund?  Yes   No 

 a. What is the reserve goal (stated as a percentage) of the total operating budget 
of the chamber? 

                    
      % 

4. Does the chamber have designated or restricted funds?  Yes   No 

 a. Please list the chamber’s designated funds.   

       

 

 



D.  Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Regulations 
1. Does the chamber receive tax or government funds?  Yes   No 

2. Is there a contract or written agreement between the government body and the 
chamber to perform services? 

 Yes   No 

 a.  If yes, list and briefly describe each contract or written agreement.   

        

 

 

E.  Payroll Taxation 
1. Are regular payroll audits performed?  Yes   No 

F.  Membership Dues  
1. How many members does the chamber have?       

2. What percentage of annual gross income is derived from membership dues?            % 

3. What is the chamber’s average member retention rateiv over the past three 
years? 

      
% 

4. Is the chamber’s membership increasing, decreasing, or stable? 

  Increasing   Decreasing   Stable 

5. Please list some reasons for membership increases or decreases. 

            

6. What is the highest dollar rate for the chamber’s membership dues?  $      

7. What is the base (minimum) dollar rate for the chamber’s membership dues? $      

8. What percentage of membership accounts pays only the base rate?       % 

9. What are the average dues per membership account? $      

10. Please indicate the billing method for membership accounts: 

  Anniversary billing date  Fiscal billing date 

11. What is the chamber’s renewal billing timeline?  

       

 

12. Does the chamber conduct exit interviews for members that do not renew their 
membership? 

 Yes   No 

13. Does the chamber have a collection procedure for late membership dues income?  Yes   No 

14. How long do you carry delinquent member accounts? 

  60 days  90 days  120 days  Over 120 days  



Supplementary Information 
 

Applicants can use this page to enter or attach supplementary information not required 

by the application.  

 

Please note that the U.S. Chamber of Commerce will review the material, but does not 

score supplementary information either as a part of the application process or as a basis 

for designating the chamber as Accredited, Accredited with 3-Stars, Accredited with 4-

Stars, or Accredited with 5-Stars.   

 

Supplementary information may be awarded up to five discretionary points as deemed 

by the Accreditation consultant for exceptional policies or best practices.     

 

Comments can be entered in the space below. 

 

 

 

 

 

Additional documents can be attached here : __________________________________________ 


Section 2. Finance Minimum Requirements

A. Responsible Accounting


1. The Chamber’s financial policies and procedures are documented in the General Operating Manual. Section I – Operating Procedures of the Manual, specifically subsections – Administration and Financing establish the Board’s policy-making authority relative to this. Section III – Administrative Policies directly establishes the financial methods. 

The Chamber’s ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES, PRACTICES & PROCEDURES that outlines the financial policies and procedures is attached as A. 2.1.


2. Financial policy and/or procedures manual: (Note - Many of the above policies are noted in the organization’s Bylaws.)

Finance Clauses: 

Fiscal Year designation - The Chamber’s fiscal year designation is noted in the organization’s Bylaws in Article V, Section 3.0 Fiscal Year. While this is not written in the General Operating Manual, it is noted in the Manual that “Chamber programs and policies are consistent with the purpose stated in the By-Laws.”


Procedure for application of chamber revenues - Section I – Operating Procedure, Financing relates to application of chamber revenues. Membership dues provide the funds to maintain the continuing Chamber program.  The rate of membership dues is based on the proportionate interest of the company in the local economy and, therefore, the Chamber program.  The basic rate is established by the Board of Directors and may be increased as circumstances require.  In deciding the dues rate for members with a substantial interest in the Oshkosh area, a fair-share rate is determined by comparison with other members in similar categories of business. Dues are paid in advance on a quarterly, semi-annual, or annual basis.  A member whose dues payment is delinquent ninety days may be suspended, and his membership terminated by the President/CEO and subject to review by the Board of Directors. Special promotion and contributed funds, other than dues, are used for the particular purpose for which they are contributed. The Chamber is operated on a budget adopted by the Board of Directors as early as possible each fiscal year.  All committee programs are conducted within budget allocations, unless specific Board of Directors approval is given and additional funds are allocated for committee use. Purchases of services, supplies, and equipment are made from Chamber members whenever practical, and Chamber purchases are equitably divided among Chamber members capable of providing the goods and services. Complete records of all dues billed, money received, and funds expended are maintained.  The financial records of the Chamber are reviewed by the Executive Committee monthly. 


Placement of excess revenues - It is the policy of the Board that the placement of excess revenue be ear marked in the following areas: Capital Investment Account - The uses of this fund are restricted to for the replacement of depreciable, capital assets.  The funding mechanism for this account equals our annual depreciation expense. Cash Reserve Account - As policy, the Board established a 90-day cash reserve account.  The fund is earmarked to provide a cushion for unanticipated short-term cash shortfall.  It is not to be used for special projects.   


Disbursements - The authorization to make disbursements is noted in the General Operating Manual in Section III – Administrative Policies. It is also noted in the organization’s Bylaws Article V – Finances, Section 2.0 Disbursements.


Annual review of accounts - The annual review of accounts by a qualified, independent outside source is addressed in the organization’s Bylaws in Article V – Finances, Section 5.0 Annual Audit. The Chamber’s bylaws provide that an annual audit be conducted by a certified public accountant.  This audit provision is adhered to and is adequate for the Chamber.


Designated or Restrict Funds - The uses of the Capital Investment Fund are restricted to for the replacement of depreciable, capital assets.  The funding mechanism for this account equals our annual depreciation expense. 

Banking Clauses:

Number and types of bank accounts - The Chamber has bank accounts for the following purposes: general checking account, payroll, capital investment, gift certificate, and Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce Foundation. We hold larger cash balances in certificates of deposits. Corporate accounts shall be divided among member financial institutions in reasonable proportion to their investment in the organization. This is addressed in the General Operating Procedures under Banking on page 12.

Account signatures - The follow are the account signature clauses: 


Routine disbursements for budgeted items and postage in amounts up to $1,000 shall require one signature. All other checks shall require two signatures unless prior written authorization is obtained. The four signatories shall be annually, the President/CEO, Chairman, Chairman Elect and the Treasurer. Fund transfers among Chamber accounts (such as from high yield account to payroll or operating account) shall require one signature. This is addressed in the General Operating Procedures under Banking on page 12.


Deposits – All are handled by the Staff Controller. This is addressed in the General Operating Procedures under Banking on page 12.


Investment Clauses:

Types of securities to be held – The Board has taken a very conservative investment approach relative to its investment strategy. All funds are invested in certificates of deposit. The Foundation, however, does hold its Leadership Oshkosh endowment in a mutual fund. The Board established a cash investment policy, specifically a sweep account, to enable us to generate income on this cash. However, this account has been temporarily suspended due to increase cost of maintaining and servicing this account. This is addressed in the General Operating Procedures under Banking on page 12.

Designation of person responsible – Upon authorization of the Board, the President is the responsible individual. This is addressed in the General Operating Procedures under Banking on page 12.

Types of Special Funding - Capital Investment Account - The uses of this fund are restricted to for the replacement of depreciable, capital assets.  The funding mechanism for this account equals our annual depreciation expense. Cash Reserve Account - As policy, the Board established a 90-day cash reserve account.  The fund is earmarked to provide a cushion for unanticipated short-term cash shortfall.  It is not to be used for special projects. This is addressed in the General Operating Procedures under Special Funds on page 11.


Kinds of expenditures for special funds - Capital Investment Account - The uses of this fund are restricted to for the replacement of depreciable, capital assets.  The funding mechanism for this account equals our annual depreciation expense. This is addressed in the General Operating Procedures under Special Funds on page 11. 

Fund transfer authorization - Fund transfers among Chamber accounts (such as from high yield account to payroll or operating account) is authorized by the President. This is addressed in the General Operating Procedures under Banking on page 12.

3. The Chamber uses accrual accounting. 


4. The Chamber pays its bills within ten business days of receipt of the invoice.


B. Budget

A 2.2 is the current year detail budget.


A 2.3 is the fiscal year 2008 financial report.


1. The budgeting process takes place over a two month period. The process of developing the Chamber’s annual operating budget is directly associated with our strategic planning and program of action process.  This planning process drives the Chamber’s operating budget.  Once the Board adopts the program of action, usually in July, staff begins development of the budget.  The budget process takes into consideration new and existing programs and activities, along with strategic initiatives that take us beyond one fiscal year.  Staff creates the initial budget, which is then reviewed by the Executive Committee. 

2. The annual budget document details all income and expense in detail. The budget document provides a summary of the budget, along with the detail on membership revenue, administrative and office operating expenses and specific program budgets. 

3. All board members are provided an annual business plan at the beginning of the fiscal year. The Business Plan includes a copy of the Chamber’s Strategic Plan, the annual Program of Work, and the budget that includes summary budget information, administrative, program and operations budgets.

4. The Board has the authority to adopt the budget, with amendments as presented.  This is one of the primary responsibilities of the Board of Directors. It is the single most important policy document that the Board approves. The Board of Directors adopts the annual operating budget at the September Board meeting. The new budget year begins October 1. 

C. Financial Reporting

1. All of the Chamber’s accounting/reports are maintained electronically. The monthly financial reports are generated using Great Plains Accounting software. Other reports are generated on Excel spreadsheets. The Chamber uses the most current Great Plains accounting software available. The most recent update was installed in November 2005

A 2.4 Attach copies of your chamber’s three most recent monthly financial reports. 

2. Financial reports provide:


Fiduciary Responsibility for all funds – The report reflects these funds – Gift Certificate. This is the limit of the designate funds that the board has fiduciary responsibility, other than operating funds.


Current month’s income and expenses are summarized on the second page with the detail on pages 3 – 6.


Year-to-date income is also reflected on the summary on the first and second page with the detail on pages 3 – 6.


Budget account information is reflected in summary on the second page with the detail on pages 3 – 6.


Current total cash status is summarized on the Balance Sheet and segregates our various cash accounts.


3. The budget is monitored monthly by the Executive Committee. This activity has been delegated to the Executive Committee and is a standing agenda item at each meeting. Prior to the Committee’s review, staff – President and accountant – review the monthly financial report. After review and adjustments, the financial report is reviewed with the Chamber’s Treasurer, who presents it at the Executive Committee meeting. The Board is given copies of the financial reports for information, but the report is not reviewed at the Board meetings. The financial report is part of a consent agenda item at the Board meetings. As a consent agenda item, any board member may ask to have the financial report taken out of the consent agenda for discussion. In circumstances where Board discussion would need to take place regarding the financial report, it would obviously not be included in the consent agenda.  

4.  The Chamber property and liability policy both have an “A+” rating. The property insurance has taken into account the capital improvements done on the building and computer and equipment purchases made.  The building and property is insured for $575,000.  .


5. The Chamber does provide Director and Officer insurance. Our D & O liability policy has an “A” rating.  Coverage is reviewed on annual basis. D & O liability policy covers up to $1,000,000.   


6. An annual audit is conducted by an independent, certified public accounting firm. 


A 2.5 is a copy of the chamber’s 2008 audit.



A 2.6 is not applicable.


D. Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Regulations


1. The Chamber’s IRS identification number: 93-0765817


A 2.7 is the IRS Letter of Exemption


2. The Chamber files IRS Form 990. The tax return is completed by our Certified Public Accounting firm, following the annual audit.


3. The Chamber also files IRS Form 990T for unrelated business income. The Chamber began filing this form in 1996. 


E. State Income Tax


1. The Chamber is required to file a state income tax report.


 
A 2.8 Copy of the most recent state income tax report.


2. The Chamber does not sell any product or service that is subject to Wisconsin retail sales tax. We do sell a small amount of community promotional items on a consignment basis. This product is produced and owned by a local company that is sold at our office. That local firm is responsible to collect and remit sales tax to the State. We also operate concession for a local summer time concert series. The Chamber comes under the State’s standards for the occasional sale exemption. We fall under Standard 1: “the organization is not engaged in a trade or business.” Two standards are used to determine whether a nonprofit organization is engaged in a trade or business: a) a 20-day standard and b) a $15,000 receipts standard. Both standards must be exceeded before a nonprofit organization is considered to be engaged in a trade or business. In our case, we do exceed the $15,000 receipts standard, but do not exceed the 20-day standard.


3. The Chamber’s Wisconsin department of revenue identification number: 036-10201522316-03

4. The Chamber is not sales tax-exempt.


5. The Chamber is not required to have a state occupational license.


F. Payroll Taxation

1. Payroll taxes are withheld from employee payroll checks and are transmitted and reported to the IRS and the State Department of Revenue within the reporting time established by statute. The payroll service is contract through a local certified public accounting firm.  


Section 2. Finance Additional Criteria

A. Responsible Accounting 

1. There is some segregation of duties relative to recording and performing financial transactions. While the annual audit notes this limitation, it is financially unreasonable to an operation our size to make the necessary investment in additional staff to overcome this limitation. Consequently, recording and compiling of checks and cash are handled by our receptionist, along with the completion of the bank deposit slips. Copies of this are made for verification. Our staff Controller makes the actual bank deposit and records all the financial transactions.

2. The following Chamber staff are bonded up to $55,000. (John Casper, Alice Roberts, Bruce Nelson, Kelli Karpinski, Joan Hildebrand)

3. Our staff Controller has a degree in Accounting from the University of Wisconsin Oshkosh. She has the capabilities to successfully execute the requirements of the financial position.

4. During the Board Orientation, the Chamber’s financial statements are reviewed so that there is a working knowledge and understanding of these reports. 


5. As part of our seminar offerings, we provide programs relating to finance and financial management. Any Board member has the opportunity to attend these programs. However, these programs are not required for Board members to attend. All Board members are owners, presidents or high level executives within their organization. These individuals are highly skilled business professionals. It is doubtful that financial training would be needed or beneficial.  

B. Budget


1. Staff creates the initial budget. It is then reviewed by the Executive Committee.  This review begins the process of refinement. Decisions are made relative to budget allocations as they relate to the organization’s strategic direction.  After this process is completed, the Board of Directors reviews the budget document with consideration being made relative to the Chamber’s strategic plan.  

2. The budget is monitored monthly by the Executive Committee. This activity has been delegated to the Executive Committee and is a standing agenda item at each meeting. Prior to the Committee’s review, staff – President and Controller – review the monthly financial report. After review and adjustments, the financial report is reviewed with the Chamber’s Treasurer, who presents it at the Executive Committee meeting. The Board is given copies of the financial reports for information, but the report is not reviewed at the Board meetings. The financial report is part of a consent agenda item at the Board meetings. 

3. The Chamber budget document is a one year plan. It is an annual outcome of a multi-year strategic planning document. As previously discussed, the Board of Directors reviews the budget document with consideration being made relative to the Chamber’s strategic plan. It is noted within the budget of multi-year program activities.


4. The Chamber Budget is an outcome of the Strategic Plan and the Program of Work. All committee chairs are directly involved in the process of creating these plans. Additionally, we have made a concerted effort to have most committee chairs serve on the Board of Directors. This creates that tie between the Board and Advisory Committees.   The Budget ties-in directly with the Program of Work and reflects revenues and associated expenditures with Chamber goals and objectives. Since the Board approves the annual budget, most committee chairs receive that information through that process. In the cases where a committee chair does not serve on the Board, it is the appropriate staff member’s responsibility to share budget information with the chairman.  


5. There is a clear understanding that committees do not have the authority to expend funds or execute contracts on behalf of the Chamber, unless authority to do so is provided by the Board or staff member.      

C. Financial Reporting


1. Financial reports are monitored and reviewed monthly by the Executive Committee. This responsibility was delegated to the Executive Committee by the Board. 

2. The Executive Committee reviews the preliminary audit with our Certified Public Accountant firm. The entire Board reviews the annual audit in November of each year. 


3. The Chamber has a reserve account: The Chamber has a 90-day cash reserve fund, called a temporary investment account. .The potential use of this reserve fund is for  unanticipated short-term cash flow shortfall. As of April 2009, there is $128,064 in this account. 


4. The Chamber has a designated account: The Capital investment account was established and is funded equal to the amount of our annual depreciation expense.  This fund is used for all capital expenditures.  As of April 2009, the Chamber has $283,425 in its capital investment account. This Fund can only be used for capital expenditures. 


D. Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Regulations


1. The Chamber receives a small amount of funding from the Oshkosh Area School District (OASD) to provide services to the Partners In Education Council programs. The amount is $20,000 annually. This revenue is segregated from the operating funds of the Chamber and is run through the Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce Foundation account.

2. There is a written Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Chamber and the Oshkosh Area School District. The MOU outlines expectations of the services that the OASD will receive in exchange for the funding.    

E. Payroll Taxation


1. All payrolls functions are performed by an outside vendor. As part of this service, this payroll function is routinely audited. 

F. Membership Dues


1. At the end of April 2009, we had 1046 Chamber members.


2. Member revenue, as a percentage of total income, is 26.1 percent. 


3. Member retention rate is as follows:


 
Fiscal Year 2008 – 89.3%



Fiscal Year 2007 – 91.0%

Fiscal Year 2006 –87.0% 

4. Over the past five fiscal years (October – September), our year-end membership totals were as follows:



Fiscal Year 2008 - 1052


Fiscal Year 2007 - 1056


Fiscal Year 2006 - 1059


Fiscal Year 2005 - 1090



Fiscal Year 2004 – 1088

Membership over this time period saw both increases and declines. We had steady membership growth peaking at 1137 members at the end of April 2008. After that time, the economy slowed and membership dropped accordingly. Over the last two fiscal years, our membership strategy was to maintain the organization at 1100 members. 


5. 


6. The highest dollar rate for Chamber membership is $12,653.

7. The base Chamber membership fee is $275.  

8. The Chamber has 18% of its membership that pays the base rate.

9. The average dues per membership are $407.94.


10. All members are billed on an anniversary billing date system.


12. All non-renewing members are asked to complete short email survey. For those that don’t complete the survey, either a member of our Membership Committee or our Membership Director follows-ups with the business to complete this survey.


13. We create a monthly member receivable report that outlines past due accounts.  The Membership Director calls these members in an attempt to collect on these accounts.  The approach is to assist and identify issues the member may be confronting.  This creates a good avenue for us to service their needs. Additionally, past due accounts are sent 60 and 90 day statements.

14. We generally carry delinquent membership accounts for 90 days. However, with the recent economic downturn, we have made exceptions to this and have carried long-standing members longer. In certain circumstances, we have written-off portions of their annual membership dues. This is done for long-standing members that have supported us in our lean years. We believe that the Chamber needs to be there for those companies when they need us the most.
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File Attachment
FINANCE - Section 2.DOC



 
                                                
i  Financial policy and procedures manual:  The Accrediting Board requires that the chamber create a 
written manual of generally accepted accounting principles that provides the chamber’s financial staff 
with adequate controls for general finance, banking, and investments. For sample financial policy and 
procedures manuals, refer to the best practices Web page at 
http://www.uschamber.com/chambers/accreditation/best_practices.htm  Return to Page 11 
 
ii Audit:  The Accrediting board requires that all Accredited chambers with revenue greater than 
$500,000 undergo a full financial audit by a certified accounting firm every other year. For chambers with 
revenue under $500,000 the Accrediting board requires that an audit by a certified accounting firm be 
completed every three years.         Return to Page 12 
 
iii Financial review:  The Accrediting board requires that in years when a full financial audit is not 
conducted, a financial review, completed by a certified accounting professional, be provided.  If the 
chamber conducts yearly audits, a financial review does not need to be conducted. 
           Return to Page 12 
 
iv Membership retention rate:  Retention rate equals the number of expiring members from a year that 
renewed their membership divided by the total number of expiring members for that year.  
           Return to Page 16 
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